
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
Monday, May 6, 2024  

Immediately following the  
Special Meeting of the  

Bartlesville Municipal Authority  
beginning at 5:30 p.m. 

 
Mayor Dale Copeland 

918-338-4282 
 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to order the business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council by Mayor Copeland. 
 

2. Roll call and establishment of a quorum. 
 

3. Citizens to be heard. 
 

4. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 
• Purple Heart City Proclamation 
• National Police Week May 12-18, 2024 Proclamation 
• Presentation of Meritorious Conduct Awards to Police Officers Sergeant Jarred Burdick, 

Sergeant Caleb Samson, School Resource Officer Maggie Blevins; Citizens Thad Freidman, 
Peter Emmitt, Bon Bennett, Jack Williams, Craig Flowers, John Donoghue; and  Firefighters 
Jacob Hickok, Trevor Rabbitt, Jerison Monday and Matthew Larson.  Presented by Police Chief 
Kevin Ickleberry and Fire Chief David Topping. 

 
5. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  

• One opening on the Ambulance Commission 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Area History Museum Trust Authority 

 
6. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of April 1, 2024. 
ii. The Special Meeting Minutes of April 15, 2024. 
iii. The Special Workshop Meeting Minutes of April 15, 2024. 

 
b. Approval or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, and 

Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Allison Swift, Mr. Orville Burks and Ms. Kristy Kier to three year terms 

each on the Street and Traffic Committee at the recommendation of Councilmember Roszel. 
ii. Appointment of Mr. Cole Crockett to a three-year term on the Sewer System Improvements 

Oversight Committee at the recommendation of Mr. Dorsey. 
iii. Appointment of Ms. Jan Watt to a three-year term on the Community Center Trust Authority 

at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
iv. Reappointment of Mr. Richard Keim for an additional three-year term on the Ambulance 

Commission at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
v. Appointment of Dr. Gopal Chandrasekharan for a three-year term on the Keep Bartlesville 

Beautiful Committee at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
. 
 
 



 
 
 
 c. Approval of Resolutions 
  i. Amending the Agreements by Resolution to the City Council’s employee agreements with  

the City Manager, City Attorney, and Municipal Judge. 
  ii. Approving a Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement by Resolution between the City of 

Bartlesville and the Bureau of Indian Affairs. 
     
 d. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Change Orders, Memorandums 

of Understanding, and Grant Applications. 
  i. Renewal of City Manager’s Employment Agreement. 
  ii. Contract with Stephen Smith and The City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public Library for a 

Summer Reading Program performance. 
iii.  T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Brittany Day and the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville 

Municipal Airport. 
iv. Contract between the City of Bartlesville and Debbie Neece, for a period of temporary 

employment to assist in the training and orientation of the incoming Collections Manager, 
Casey Sullivan. 

v. Lease Agreement Amendment #1 with Intuitech for equipment to conduct a pilot study for 
the Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Improvements. 

vi. Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Churches United for Community Concern, 
Inc. (CONCERN), setting out the roles and responsibilities for implementing the 2021 
CDBG-Coronavirus Relief Program grant modification for rehabilitation of facilities to 
improve indoor air quality. 

vii. 2024 Addendum to the Administrative Services Agreement between the City of Bartlesville 
and RxBenefits. 

     
 e. Approval of Reelection of OMAG Board of Trustees  
  i. Reelect Mike Bailey and Craig Stephenson to the OMAG Board of Trustees. 
 
 f. Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for nine months ending March 31, 2024. 
 
 g.  Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – April 2024 
  

7. Public hearing and possible action on a request by Andrew Oleson to close a portion of a  20-
foot-wide utility easement located on the north side of  Lot 28, Block 37, Pennington Hills, 
Fifth Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma. Presented by Micah Siemers, P.E., 
Director of Engineering.  
 

8. Public hearing and possible action on a request by Arcadian Housing to close a portion of 
nineteen (19) different 7.5-foot-wide utility easements located in Oak Wood Addition, 
Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma. Presented by Micah Siemers, P.E., Director of 
Engineering.  

 
9. Public hearing and possible action on a Resolution adopting the City of Bartlesville Budget for 

Fiscal Year 2024-2025 and establishing budget amendment authority, authorizing the 
cancellation of encumbrances which are not due and payable as of June 30, 2024, and re-
appropriating amounts of cancelled encumbrances to the same fund and department for 
Fiscal Years 2024-2025. Presented by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk.  

 
10. Discuss and take possible action to approve the Capital Improvements Program (CIP) Budget 

for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. Presented by Micah Siemers, P.E., Director of Engineering.  
 

11. Presentation of Street & Traffic Committee recommended Preventative Maintenance Street 
Projects for approved funding in FY’s 21-22, 22-23, and 23-24, with possible action for Council 
recommendation. Presented by Micah Siemers, P.E., Director of Engineering. 

 



 
 
 

12. Presentation of staff recommended issuance schedule for 2023 General Obligation Bond 
Projects with possible action for Council recommendation. Presented by Micah Siemers, P.E., 
Director of Engineering. 

 
13. Presentation and receipt of the FY 2023-2024 Annual Report of the Bartlesville Development 

Authority and the plan, and take possible action to approve the proposed operating budget for 
FY 2024-2025, appropriating funds from the Economic Development Fund to support annual 
operations. Presented by David Wood, President, Bartlesville Development Authority. 

 
14. Discuss and take possible action to approve the annual contract between the City of 

Bartlesville and the Bartlesville Development Authority for Economic Development Services 
for the period of July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. Presented by David Wood, President, 
Bartlesville Development Authority. 

 
15. Receive Visitors Inc. FY 2023-24 Annual Report, and take possible action to approve the 

Visitors Inc. Fiscal Year 2024-25 Operating Budget.  Presented by Maria Gus, Executive 
Director, Visit Bartlesville.   

 
16. Discuss and take possible action to approve the Destination Marketing Agreement between 

the City of Bartlesville and Visit Bartlesville for the period of July 1, 2024 through June 30, 
2025. Presented by Maria Gus, Executive Director, Visit Bartlesville.  

 
17. Discuss and take possible action on the strategic direction of Adams Municipal Golf Course. 

Presented by Laura Sanders, Assistant City Manager. 
 

18. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an ordinance permitting the use of golf carts on 
City streets. Presented by Mike Bailey, City Manager. 

 
19. Discuss and take possible action to formally receive applications for Ward 4 City Council seat.  

 
20. New Business. 

 
21. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 
22. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 

 
23. Adjournment. 

 
The Agenda was received and filed in the Office of the City Clerk and posted in prominent public 
view at City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, May 2, 2024. 
 
Jason Muninger    /s/ Elaine Banes 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO    by Elaine Banes, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
City of Bartlesville Website: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/ 
Live Streaming: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/ 
Sparklight: Channel 56 
  

 Open Meetings Act Compliance (25 O.S. Sec. 301 et seq.): all discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Council. Official 
action can only be taken on items which appear on the agenda. The City Council may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, amend, 
strike, or continue any agenda item. When more information is needed to act on an item, the City Council may refer the matter to the City 
Manager, Staff or City Attorney, or back to a committee or other recommending body. Under certain circumstance, items are deferred to a 
specific later date or stricken from the agenda entirely. Agenda items requiring a public hearing as required by law will be so noted. The City 
Council may at their discretion change the order of the business agenda items. City of Bartlesville encourages participation from all its citizens. If 
participation at any public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to the City Clerk at least one working day prior to the scheduled 
meeting is encouraged to make the necessary accommodations. The City may waive this rule if signing is not the necessary accommodation. 

https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/
https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/


   

   
   

Official Proclamation 
 

A PURPLE HEART CITY 
  

WHEREAS, the people of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma have great admiration and 
the utmost gratitude for all the men and women who have selflessly served their country 
and this community in the Armed forces; and 
 
WHEREAS, veterans have paid the high price of freedom by leaving their families and 
communities and placing themselves in harm’s way for the good of all; and 
 
WHEREAS, the contributions and sacrifices of the men and women from the City of 
Bartlesville who served in the Armed forces have been vital in maintaining the freedoms 
and way of life enjoyed by our citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, many men and women in uniform have given their lives while serving in the 
Armed forces; and 
 
WHEREAS, many citizens of our community have earned the Purple Heart Medal as a 
result of being wounded while engaged in combat with an enemy force, construed as a 
singularly meritorious act of essential service; and 
 
WHEREAS, May 6, 2024 has been officially designated as the day for the City of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma to remember and recognize veterans who are recipients of the 
Purple Heart Medal. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Dale Copeland, Mayor of the City of Bartlesville and on behalf 
of the City Council,  hereby proclaims the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma as a Purple 
Heart City, honoring the service and sacrifice of our nation’s men and women in uniform 
wounded or killed by the enemy while serving to protect the freedoms enjoyed by all 
Americans. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands 
and caused the Official Seal of the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma, to be affixed this 6th day of May, in the 
year of our Lord two thousand and twenty-four. 

   
                                                            

       Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 
 

Agenda Item 4.a.



 
 

Official Proclamation 

National Police Week 
May 12-18, 2024 

 
WHEREAS, the Congress and President of the United States have designated 
May 15 as Peace Officers Memorial Day, and the week in which it falls as Police 
Week; and 

 
WHEREAS, as members of the law enforcement agency of the City of 
Bartlesville play an essential role in safeguarding the rights of freedoms of the 
citizens of Bartlesville; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is important that all citizens know and understand the problems, 
duties and responsibilities of their police department, and 

 
WHEREAS, members of our police department recognize their duty to serve the 
people by safeguarding life and property, by protecting them against violence or 
disorder, and by protecting the innocent against deception and the weak against 
oppression or intimidation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the police department of the City of Bartlesville has grown to be a 
modern and skilled law enforcement agency which unceasingly provides a vital 
public service; and 

 
WHEREAS, our police officers have exhibited compassion, understanding and 
professionalism during the performance of their duties in this past year; 

 
NOW,   THEREFORE,   I,   Dale   W.   Copeland,    Mayor,    City    of  
Bartlesville hereby proclaims the week  of  May  12-18,  2024,  as  “National 
Police Week” and call upon all citizens of  the  City  of  Bartlesville  to  observe 
and join in honoring the  men  and  women  whose  diligence  and 
professionalism keep our citizens safe. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set  my  
hand and cause the Official Seal of 
the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma to be affixed 
this 6th day of May,  in  the  year  of  our   Lord   
Two   Thousand  and Twenty-four. 

 
 
 
                                                                   

 Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 

Agenda Item 4.b.



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
Monday, April 1, 2024  

5:30 p.m. 
 

Mayor Dale Copeland 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 

MINUTES 
(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 15, 2023 and the Agenda was posted March 28, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
City Council present were Mayor Dale Copeland, Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr., Councilmembers 
Trevor Dorsey, and Loren Roszel. Councilmember Billie Roane was absent. 

 
 City staff present were Mike Bailey, City Manager; Jess Kane, City Attorney; Jason Muninger, 

CFO/City Clerk; Terry Lauritsen, Director of Water Utilities; Micah Siemers, Director of 
Engineering; Laura Sanders, Director of Human Resources; Kelli Williams, Chief 
Communications Officer; Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development; Mike Richardson, 
Bartlesville Municipal Airport Director;  Alicia Shelton, Accounting, David Taylor, BC Fire Dept.; 
Deputy Police Chief Rocky Bevard; Kelsey Walker, Communications and Marketing Manager; 
Captain Jay Hastings, Security; and Elaine Banes, Executive Assistant.  

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order by Mayor 

Copeland at 5:30 p.m.  
 

2. Roll call was conducted and a quorum established. 
 

3. The invocation will be provided by Pastor Stephen Carl, First Presbyterian Church. 
 

4. Citizens to be heard. 
 

There were no citizens to be heard. 
 

5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 
• Councilmember Roszel presented the Donate Life Month – April 2024 Proclamation. 
• Councilmember Dorsey presented the Autism Awareness & Acceptance Month – April 2024 

Proclamation. 
• Vice Mayor Curd presented the Child Abuse Prevention Month – April 2024 Proclamation. 
• Mayor Copeland presented the Civitan Awareness Month – April 2024 Proclamation. 
• Councilmember Roszel presented the Heartland District of Pilot International Day – April 20, 

2024 Proclamation. 
 

6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  
• One opening on the Bartlesville Area History Museum Trust Authority 
• One opening on the Sewer System Improvement Oversight Committee 
• One opening on Visit Bartlesville (Bartlesville Convention & Visitor’s Bureau Board of Directors) 

 

Agenda item 7.a.i.



 
 
 
 

Mayor Copeland read the openings and encouraged citizens to volunteer on City 
Committees. Applications can be found at www.cityofbartlesville.org or at City Hall in the city 
Manager’s Office. 

 
7. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of March 4, 2024. 

 
b. Approval or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, and 

Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Andrea McCollough, Mr. Brent Butler, and Mr. Dean Costales to three-

year terms each on the Adams Golf Course Operating Committee at the recommendation of 
Councilman Dorsey. 

. 
 c. Approval of Resolutions 
  i. A Resolution of the City of Bartlesville naming 5th Street from Delaware Avenue to Shawnee 

Avenue the honorary name of “Jim Hess Boulevard”. 
  ii. A Resolution approving and accepting the Fiscal Year 2021 Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Small Cities Set-Aside Program project, Contract No. 18261, for Fifth Street 
sidewalk and street improvements as complete. 

  iii.  A Resolution accepting a grant offer in the amount of $585,146.00 from the Federal Aviation 
Administration for Airport Improvement Project (AIP 3-40-0007-018-2024) at Bartlesville 
Municipal Airport for “Construct Taxilane” and authorize the Mayor to execute the Grant 
Agreement and all necessary documents, upon receipt from FAA. 

  iv.  A Resolution accepting a grant offer in the amount of $154,854.00 from the Federal Aviation 
Administration for Airport Improvement Project (AIP 3-40-0007-019-2024) at Bartlesville 
Municipal Airport for “Construct Taxilane” and authorize the Mayor to execute the Grant 
Agreement and all necessary documents, upon receipt from FAA. 

  v. A Resolution amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2023-24 
appropriating unbudgeted revenue from the General Fund. 

  vi. A Resolution amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2023-24 
appropriating unbudgeted revenue for the Health Insurance Fund. 

   
 d. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Change Orders, Memorandums 

of Understanding, and Grant Applications. 
  i. Interlocal Agreement between the Washington County Commissioners of Washington 

County, Oklahoma and the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma to jointly move forward in meeting 
the requirements of the State’s strategic plan for Next Generation 911 Services.  

  ii.   Interlocal Agreement between the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, 
Oklahoma and the City of Bartlesville to provide the ability to work on joint projects together. 

  iii. Annual Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Richard Kane YMCA for 
management and operation of Sooner and Frontier pools. 

  iv.  Lease Agreement between the City of Bartlesville/Municipal Airport and Artesian Bottleless 
Water to lease a water machine for the airport terminal lobby. 

  v.   Approve submission of a grant application to the Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and 
Aeronautics (ODAA) for a grant to fund the project to Construct Taxilanes at Bartlesville 
Municipal Airport. 

     
 e. Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for eight months ending February 29, 2024. 
 
 f.  Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – April 2024 
  
 g. Receipt of Bids 

http://www.cityofbartlesville.org/


 
 
 
 

  i. Bid No. 2023-2024-014 for Construct Taxilane, Bartlesville Municipal Airport 
  ii. Bid No. 2023-2024-015 for Battery Operated Jaws and Cutter Set, with Battery and Charger 

for Vehicle Extrication 
 
Mayor Copeland read the consent docket in its entirety. Vicee Mayor Curd pulled Items 
7.c.iii, 7.c.iv. and 7.d.i. for further discussion. Mr. Roszel pulled Items 7.d.ii. for further 
discussion.  
 

 Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve the consent docket except for Items 7.c.iii, 7.c.iv., 7.d.i. 
and 7.d.ii, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 

 
Voting Aye: Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
 Agenda Item 7.c.iii.   A Resolution accepting a grant offer in the amount of $585,146.00 from 

the Federal Aviation Administration for Airport Improvement Project (AIP 
3-40-0007-018-2024) at Bartlesville Municipal Airport for “Construct 
Taxilane” and authorize the Mayor to execute the Grant Agreement and 
all necessary documents, upon receipt from FAA; and, 

 Agenda Item 7.c.iv.   A Resolution accepting a grant offer in the amount of $154,854.00 from 
the Federal Aviation Administration for Airport Improvement Project (AIP 
3-40-0007-019-2024) at Bartlesville Municipal Airport for “Construct 
Taxilane” and authorize the Mayor to execute the Grant Agreement and 
all necessary documents, upon receipt from FAA. 

 
 Mike Richardson, Bartlesville Municipal Airport Director, reported that the project includes an 

east/west taxiway extending east of the main taxiway and will be located to the northeast of the 
terminal building. This taxilane has been designed far enough north of the terminal building for 
potential future expansion of the terminal/FBO apron and multiple future hangar sites. This taxilane 
could be extended further  east in the future as the airport develops. Also included within the scope 
is a north/south taxilane running south from the new east/west taxiway, and will open up 
development of more of the airport property for mid-sized hangars. The total project cost, including 
engineering, grant administration, and construction contract, is $2,026,125.00. The ODAA grant will 
be in the amount of $1,187,818.75 and will fund 58.63% of the project. The City will have a 5% 
share in the total project of $101,206.25. The FAA will fund the remaining $737,000.00 which will 
include $585,146.00 in AIG grant funs and $154,854.00 in NPE grant funds that will expire if not 
used in FY 2024. The plans and specifications are complete and bids were opened on February 29, 
2024. The City’s airport consultant, Parkhill, will prepare a grant application to the FAA for both the 
AIG and NPE grants. Part of the requirement to apply for the FAA funds is to approve a resolution 
accepting the grant offer from the FAA and authorizing the Mayor to execute the grant agreement 
upon receipt from FAA. He concluded that the grant agreement will require that the City pay for 
10% of the portion of the project associated with each FAA grant, whether NPE funds or AIG funds. 
The City will also be responsible for its share of the ODAA grant that is being handled in tandem 
with the FAA grants. There is sufficient budget available in the Airport Fund to cover the City’s 
share of each grant component. Vice Mayor Curd commended Mr. Richardson for his work on this 
project and for applying for the grants.  

 
 Agenda Item 7.d.i. Interlocal Agreement between the Washington County Commissioners of 

Washington County, Oklahoma and the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma to 
jointly move forward in meeting the requirements of the State’s strategic 
plan for Next Generation 911 Services.  

 Mr. Bailey and Captain Hastings each provided information that officials from both the City and 
County have been working with the Oklahoma 911 Management Authority on a needs assessment 



 
 
 
 

to bring our geographic information (GIS) address mapping system into compliance with NextGen 
911. Currently, the City and County use two different GIS mapping systems. The systems used by 
the City are for the purposes of development and engineering, while the system used by the County 
was created for tax assessment purposes. To meet the State’s requirements, our local Public 
Safety Answering Point (PSAP) needs to have a true GIS mapping system built and designed 
specifically for public safety. It is critical that addresses verify through the local CAD mapping 
system when responding to emergency services. The State of Oklahoma provides grants for 
agencies needing to update their mapping systems and Washing County emergency Management 
completed the work on such a grant application, and has agreed to update and maintain the E911 
GIS address system for both the City and County. The interlocal agreement is the first step in 
ensuring the agencies work together to complete the application process, and that the City will 
share funds paid through the grant to the County to cover the cost of the work. 

 
 Agenda Item 7.d.ii.    Interlocal Agreement between the Board of County Commissioners of 

Washington County, Oklahoma and the City of Bartlesville to provide the 
ability to work on joint projects together. 

 
 Mr. Bailey and Mr. Siemers each provided information regarding a damaged guardrail on a City 

street. The County has material that can be used now, without waiting to order the material and 
expedite installation of the safety device. This situation brought up the desire of both the County 
and City to enter into a yearly interlocal agreement authorizing each entity to transfer, as needed, 
any materials, equipment, labor and fuel that can be reimbursed. This also authorizes cooperation 
on joint projects between the two entities.  

 
 Mr. Roszel stated his appreciation of the County Commissioners for addressing the need to work 

together with the City. Mr. Bailey expressed his appreciation for the good relationship established 
between the City and County. 

 
 Mr. Roszel  moved to approve Items 7.c.iii, 7.c.iv., 7.d.i. and 7.d.ii. as presented, seconded 

by Vice Mayor Curd. 
 

Voting Aye: Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-014 for Construct Taxilane, 

Bartlesville Airport. Presented by Councilmember Roszel. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to award Bid No. 2023-2024-014 to R & L Construction, Tulsa, Oklahoma, 
in the amount of $1,531,325.00 subject to receipt of the FAA grant and ODAA grant, 
seconded by Vice Mayor Curd.  
 
Mayor Copeland commended staff on the substantial savings on this project due to the 
grants. 
 
Voting Aye:  Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 

9. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-015 for Battery Operated Jaws 
and Cutter Set, with Battery and Charger for Vehicle Extrication. Presented by Mayor 
Copeland. 

 



 
 
 
 

Mayor Copeland moved to award Bid No. 2023-2024-014 to Banner Fire Equipment in the 
amount of $27,023.50, seconded by Vice Mayor Curd. 

 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
10. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an Ordinance amending Chapter 17, Streets, 

Sidewalks, and Other Public Places, Article IV, Sidewalks, of the Bartlesville Municipal Code 
concerning the construction of sidewalks. Presented by Larry R. Curtis, Director, Community 
Development Department. 

 
Mr. Curtis reported. Using a PowerPoint, he itemized the process. The areas that were addressed are 
as follows: 

• Comprehensive review and revision of sidewalk ordinances for pedestrian-friendly 
infrastructure.New definition for "Legacy Subdivisions" approved before 2000, exempting them 
from sidewalk requirements if none exist. 

• Creation of oversite by a council appointed citizen led Streets and Traffic Committee. 

• Emphasis on including sidewalks in new or refurbished transportation projects. 

• Introduction of "sidewalk fee-in-lieu" to address 'orphaned sidewalks'. 

• Removal of definition of Private Sidewalks 

• Clarification of "Critical Sidewalk Areas" within 100 feet of construction or existing sidewalks. 

• Elimination of restrictions on the use of fees-in-lieu for specific sidewalk improvements. 

• Guidelines for sidewalk maintenance and repairs based on private and public responsibilities. 

• Cost Repair Partnership program for property owners with repair costs exceeding $500. 

• Enforcement measures for non-compliance, including fines 

• Cost Repair Partnership Program: Assists property owners with repairs costing over $500, with 
eligibility, 

• documentation, application, review, agreement, repairs, and reimbursement. 

• Major Repairs of Public Sidewalks by the City: The city handles significant repairs during 
road maintenance or when necessary. 

• Permit Application Fee Waiver for Minor Repair: The fee is waived for minor sidewalk  repairs. 

• Enforcement: Property owners must not let sidewalks or driveways deteriorate 
dangerously. Failure to maintain results in repair assessments and potential fines. 

• Effective Date: 90 days after its passage and publication. 

• Funding: City staff will recommend dedicated funds for sidewalk maintenance in fiscal year 
2024-2025. when budgeting. 

 



 
 
 
 

Mr. Roszel stated his appreciation of Mr. Curtis and his staff working with him to bring the amended Ordinance 
forward for approval. In return, Mr. Curtis thanked Mr. Roszel for his input. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to adopt the Ordinance as presented, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 

 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
11. New Business. 

 
There was no new business to report. 

 
12. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 
Mr. Bailey expressed his appreciation for those in attendance explaining that HVAC equipment is 
being replaced causing the warmer temperatures in the building and in Council Chambers. 
 
He reported on: 
 
Fire Chief David Topping was presented a letter of commendation and appreciation from Senator 
Lankford this past Tuesday for his many years of service. Chief Topping will be retiring June 1. Fire 
Chief interviews have started, with four being held on March 27 and additional interviews will be 
conducted on April 17. He explained the interview procedure and thanked everyone who is sitting on 
the interview panels.  
 
He announced Library and Museum Director Shellie McGill’s and Deputy Police Chief Rocky Bevard’s 
upcoming retirements and thanked them for their over 35 years of service each and their dedication 
to the City and its citizens.  
 
Operation Clean House will be held on April 20, with acceptable items to be taken to the Phillips 66 
Parking Lot and the District Washington County Barn. Information can be found on the City website. 
 
Water levels continue to rise with the Spring rains. Hulah and Hudson Lakes are full as is the Caney 
River. Copan levels are rising. Long term water supply needs continue to be a priority. Senator 
Lankford met with Mr. Bailey and Mr. Lauritsen recently to discuss the City’s needs and water pricing. 
 
Mr. Bailey concluded his report encouraging citizens to vote tomorrow regarding amendments to the 
City’s Charter.  
 

13. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 
Mayor Copeland also encouraged citizens to vote, and he added that several opportunities to learn 
about the amendments were provided in a town hall and other community presentations. Information 
can also be found on the City’s website and in City Beat. 
 

14. There being no further business to address, Mayor Copeland adjourned the meeting at 6:26 
p.m. 

 
                                                       
Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 

 
 
                                                  
  Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING  
OF THE  

BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Monday, April 15, 2024 
Immediately following the 

Bartlesville Municipal Authority  
Special Meeting  

beginning at 5:30 p.m. 
 

Mayor Dale Copeland 
918-338-4282 

 

Council Chambers at City Hall 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 15, 2023 and the Agenda was posted on April 11, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
City Council present were Mayor Dale Copeland, Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr., Councilmembers 
Trevor Dorsey, and Loren Roszel. 

 
 City staff present were Mike Bailey, City Manager; Jess Kane, City Attorney; Jason Muninger, 

CFO/City Clerk; Tracy Roles, Assistant City Manager; Terry Lauritsen, Director of Water Utilities; 
Micah Siemers, Director of Engineering; Shellie McGill, Director of the Library and Museum; Kelli 
Williams, Chief Communications Officer; Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development; 
Kelsey Walker, Communications and Marketing Manager; Police Chief Kevin Ickleberry; Deputy 
Police Chief Troy Newell; Fire Battalion Chief David Taylor; Captain Andrew Ward, Security; and 
Elaine Banes, Executive Assistant.  

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order by Mayor 

Copeland immediately following the BMA Meeting at 5:42 p.m.  
 

2. Roll call was conducted and a quorum established. 
 

3. Citizens to be heard. 
 

Ed Sheets stated his appreciation of Ms. Roane and the good job she did representing Ward 
4. He added that he hoped the Council would appoint a new Ward 4 representative that 
continued to work for good of the residents of that Ward. 
 

4. Consent Docket 
 

a. Approval of Agreements, Contracts and Submission of Grant Application 
 

i. Contract between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public Library and Jumpin Jiminy, 
Inc. for the use of two inflatable interactive games for the City’s 2024 Block Party. 

ii. Grant application to partner with Grand Mental Health on the Opioid Abatement Grant 
to further the Crisis Intervention Response Team and the Parks and Pathfinder 
Program. 

iii. Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and PioneerDream Inc. for the 
development and production of three recruitment videos. 

 
Mayor Copeland read the consent docket in its entirety. 

Agenda Item 6.a.ii.



 
 
 

 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve the consent docket, seconded by Mr. Roszel. 

 
Voting Aye:  Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
5. Discuss and take possible action to approve a Resolution of the City Council of the City 

of Bartlesville adopting the Planning and Environmental Information Document for the 
proposed Chickasaw Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Project. Presented by 
Terry Lauritsen, P.E., Director of Water Utilities. 

 
Mr. Lauritsen reported that this item aligns with the Bartlesville Municipal Authority resolution 
both of which are required for submission to the Oklahoma Water Resources Board to 
complete the City’s application for financing. 

 
 Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve the Resolution as presented seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 

Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
6. Discuss and take possible action to determine the process by which a candidate for 

Ward 4 shall be chosen. Presented by Mayor Copeland. 
 

Mayor Copeland reported that with the passing of Ms. Roane, the Ward 4 City Council seat 
will need to be filled. He stated that the Charter Article 2, Section 6 which requires the City 
Council to appoint a replacement who will sit until the next general election, and provides 
additional information as well. He added that in previous instances where a Council seat needs 
to be filled, a period of time was provided to those interested to submit a letter of interest and/or 
a resume to the City Manager. Once all received, interviews will be set up in sets of two with 
the City Council. He suggested that letters of interest be received starting tomorrow, April 16, 
2024  through close of business May 3, 2024. interviews conducted through May, and a 
decision of appointment made at the June 3 regular City Council meeting. A brief discussion 
was held as to the success this process has been in the past.  

  
Mr. Dorsey moved to approve the process as set out by the Mayor, seconded by Vice Mayor 
Curd. 

 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
7. City Manager and Staff Reports. 

 
Mr. Bailey expressed his sentiments upon the passing of Ms. Roane.  
 
He also congratulated Mr. Roles on his new job at the City of Ada, Oklahoma, and to Ms. 
Sanders on her promotion to fill Mr. Roles vacated Assistant City Manager position.  

 
 
 



 
 
 

 
8. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 

 
Mr. Roszel stated how it had been his pleasure to serve with Ms. Roane. He placed a bouquet 
of flowers in her empty City Council seat in her honor. 
 
Mr. Roszel also offered his congratulations to Mr. Roles and Ms. Sanders. He thanked Mr. 
Roles for his work as Police Chief, as well as what he had accomplished as Assistant City 
Manager. In addition, he congratulated Ms. McGill on her upcoming retirement from Director 
of the Library and History Museum, thanking her for her commitment and work during her years 
at the City. 

 
9. There being no further business to address, Mayor Copeland adjourned the meeting at 

6:07 p.m. 
 
 
 

                                                 
Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 

 
                                                         
 Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 



 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES  
OF SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING  

OF THE  
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
Monday, April 15, 2024 

Immediately following the 
Bartlesville Special City Council Meeting 

following the Bartlesville Municipal Authority 
Special Meeting beginning at 5:30 p.m. 

 
Mayor Dale Copeland 

918-338-4282 
 

1st Floor Conference Room 
City Hall 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003  

 
 

MINUTES 
(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 15, 2023 and the Agenda was posted on April 11, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
City Council present were Mayor Dale Copeland, Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr., Councilmembers 
Trevor Dorsey, and Loren Roszel. 

 
 City staff present were Mike Bailey, City Manager; Jess Kane, City Attorney; Jason Muninger, 

CFO/City Clerk; Tracy Roles, Assistant City Manager; Terry Lauritsen, Director of Water Utilities; 
Micah Siemers, Director of Engineering; Shellie McGill, Director of the Library and Museum; Kelli 
Williams, Chief Communications Officer; Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development; 
Kelsey Walker, Communications and Marketing Manager; Police Chief Kevin Ickleberry; Deputy 
Police Chief Troy Newell; Fire Battalion Chief David Topping; Captain Andrew Ward, Security; 
and Elaine Banes, Executive Assistant.  

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order by Mayor 

Copeland immediately following the BMA  and Special City Council Meeting at 6:15 p.m.  
 

2. Roll call was conducted and a quorum established. 
 

3. Citizens to be heard. 
 

Shawn Barker and Pat Morrison spoke about Adams Golf Course both in favor of improved 
management and course maintenance. 

 
4. Discuss the strategic direction of the Adams Municipal Golf Course. Presented by Vice 

Mayor Curd and Mike Bailey, City Manager. 
 

Mr. Bailey reported that with Jerry Benedict’s impending retirement, there is an opportunity to 
look into management options. He added that funds have been included in the proposed 
budget to buy-out Mr. Benedict’s assets, as well as to invest and improve the course. Vice 
Mayor Curd stated that there has been a great deal of input from users of the course and from 
members of the Adams Golf Course Operating Committee. He would like to slow things down 
and authorize the City Manager to look into issuing an RFP for a consultant that would analyze 
the management and operations of the golf course. The consultant would then bring the results 
to the staff and City Council so that an educated decision could be made.  
 
Discussion covered how a consultant could look at other comparable golf courses are 
managed and provide data and expertise to the City Council, and how utilizing the members 
of the Operating Committee and the public would be beneficial to work alongside the consultant 
and staff. It was agreed by all that Adams Municipal Golf Course is an important part of the 

Agenda Item 6.a.iii.



 
 
 

Bartlesville community and instrumental in many fund raising events. Everyone wants to see it 
at its best and values its importance.  
 
Mr. Bailey stated that he would gather information to develop an RFP for a golf course 
management consultant. Mayor Copeland commented on the learning curve using the airport 
as a recent example,  and how he would like to see the golf course led by a City employed 
director.  

 
5. Presentation and discussion on the Bartlesville Comprehensive Plan update, Endeavor 

2045. Presented by Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development. 
 

Mr. Curtis introduced Christian Lentz and Jordan Evans from Halff Associates who then 
provided the progress made over the first half of the project completion timeline. The update 
included a proposed vision statement and guiding principles for Endeavor 2045, as well as 
findings from the initial community assessment, public outreach and market demand. The 
comprehensive plan update is currently moving from the 2nd phase (community outreach) and 
into the 3rd phase, which will analyze land use and development patterns. The 12-month 
project is expected to wrap up this fall. The consultant provided findings from focus groups, 
advisory committees and public meetings, as well as input from the project website (2,146 
website visits), community survey (885 responses) and interactive map (88 responses). Input 
from public meetings identified top community priorities, including water resources, 
employment opportunities, more shopping and retail options, quality public services and 
utilities, parks and open spaces, and housing options, among others. Themes from the 
community survey responses included critical issues such as water conservation, economic 
diversification and roadway conditions/connectivity, as well as quality of life concerns such as 
employment and jobs, restaurants and events/festivals. Housing issues identified included 
housing affordability, condition of housing and proximity to services. Transportation concerns 
included routine street maintenance, pedestrian accommodations and vehicle capacity. The 
interactive map allows the public to identify and label specific areas of concern in Bartlesville, 
and is available to view at https://bartlesvillecompplan.halff.com/. 
 
A brief discussion included that Bartlesville is running about average to comparable cities; how 
the maps developed by Halff will be included in the final delivered package; how public 
feedback aligns with City officials feedback; and that the homeless issue is a common thread 
among every community. Mr. Curtis thanked Mr. Lentz and Mr. Jordan, as well as City Special 
Projects Manager, Greg Collins, for their work on Endeavor 2045. 
 

6. Presentation and discussion of the City of Bartlesville proposed budget for Fiscal Year 
2024-2025. Presented by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk.  
 
Mr. Muninger, using a PowerPoint, presented the budget preparation schedule, the financial 
structure of the City, and a review of significant items. Beginning with Revenue, he reported 
on sales tax estimations projecting a reduction by 1.5% or $349,000 across the organization; 
total resources and revenue in the General Fund are expected to exceed $40.4 million, with 
expenditures totaling $38.1 million, and a use tax estimate for FY 2024-2025 at $4.5 million. 
Included in the proposed budget are utility rate increases totaling about 5.2 percent. The increases, 
which will start July 1, are based on a comprehensive water and wastewater rate study conducted in 
2020-21. The increases are required to improve the City's utility infrastructure, including an $82 million 
expansion of the waste water treatment system. The improvements are required by the Oklahoma 
Department of Environmental Quality for the City to meet State and Federal regulations. The proposed 
budget includes six new positions: An applications specialist in the IT Department, a project engineer 
in the Engineering Department, and four dispatchers in the E-911 Department. (Some of the additions 
are off-set by the reduction of three vacant patrol positions in the Police Department.) 
 

https://bartlesvillecompplan.halff.com/


 
 
 

 
He provided the general employee pension status review; and salaries and benefits review 
including a 6% COLA and 2.5% Merit for eligible employees. Additionally, he reported that the 
employee health insurance costs are expected to increase by nearly 12 percent, though 
workers compensation claims are trending lower and estimated to be at $138,000. Continuing, 
Mr. Muninger reviewed the Stabilization Reserve Fund; the Capital Reserve Fund; Wastewater 
Capital Plans; Water Capital Plans; Sanitation Capital Plans; the FY 2026 Revenue 
Projections; FY 2026 Expenditure Projections; and the FY 2026 Budget Summary. 
 
Discussion covered concerns about trading the three vacant police officer positions for 
dispatcher positions; how the three police officer positions have been vacant for some time 
and the need for additional dispatchers is greater; how if qualified police officer applicants 
apply, that there is financial room to hire them even if new dispatchers are hired; how to attract 
additional police officer candidates; that turnover in the police department is relatively low; how 
compensation for police officers is good; and how utilizing the vacant police officer positions in 
order to hire additional dispatchers is the more responsible course of action at this time. Vice 
Mayor Curd asked Mr. Muninger to provide new hire costs. Further discussion covered that 
there is one last traunch of COVID funds available, and that an increase in salaries will be in 
the budget for the legal department.  
 

7. Presentation and discussion of the proposed Capital Improvements Program (CIP) 
Budget for FY 2024-2025. Presented by Micah Siemers, P.E., Director of Engineering.  

 
Using a PowerPoint, Mr. Siemers presented slides showing the G.O. Bond and Sales Tax 
Projects since 1999 to present, Capital Improvement Project Budgets, Wastewater Fund Carry 
Over Projects, Stormwater Fund Carry Over Projects, 2019A and 2019B General Obligation 
Bond Carry Over Projects, 2021A General Obligation Bond Carry Over Projects, 2022 General 
Obligation Bond Carry Over Projects; 2023 General Obligation Bond Carry Over Projects; 
Capital Reserve Fund Carry Over Projects, and ½ Cent Sales Tax Carry Over Projects. 
Continuing, he presented the Wastewater Fund Proposed Projects and Equipment, the 
Wastewater Regulatory Fund Proposed Projects and Equipment, the City Hall Fund Proposed 
Projects and Equipment, the Capital Reserve Fund Proposed Projects and Equipment, and 
the ½ Cent Sales Tax Proposed Projects and Equipment. 

 
In summary, a list of projects proposed for funding during the upcoming fiscal year was 
presented. Funding for the projects has been identified through the 2020 Half-cent Sales Tax 
Extension and the Enterprise Fund 5-Year Capital plans. They are as follows: 

• Tuxedo Bridge rehab 
• Sunset Bridge rehab with pedestrian bridge 
• Adams Golf Course greens rebuild 
• Park parking lot improvements 
• Yale asphalt rebuild 
• Wilshire, Waverly, Oakdale, and Highland concrete street rehabilitations 
• Dewey, Quail Ridge, Cambridge, Braddock and Southport asphalt street rehabilitations 
• Sooner Park Basketball courts and gaga ball pit 
• Madison Boulevard reconstruction - Tuxedo to water tower 
• Downtown landscaping improvements Phase 3 
• Sooner Park restroom remodel 
• Bicycle signage 
• Police vehicles and body-worn cameras 
• Fire tanker/engine 
• Preventative maintenance street repairs 

 



 
 
 

Discussion covered when the new Civitan Park Shade Structure would be completed. The 
contractor says it will be approximately two weeks before it can be placed. Mayor Copeland 
stated his appreciation of staff for their work on the budget and the conservative approach. 

 
8. There being no further business to address, Mayor Copeland adjourned the workshop 

meeting at 8:29 p.m. 
 
 
 

                                                        
Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 

 
 
                                                             
 Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 

 



 6.b.i.













6.b.ii.







Agenda Item 6.b.iii.





Agenda Item ___ 
Date May 6, 2024  

Prepared by Kevin Ickleberry, Police Chief 
Police Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss and take action to reappoint Richard Keim to an additional three-year term on the 
Ambulance Commission.  
 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Bartlesville Police Department staff recommends the reappointment of Richard Keim. Mr. 
Keim has served his initial term well, providing valuable input to the committee. He is qualified 
and willing to serve. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the reappointment of Richard Keim for a second term at the next available 
City Council meeting. 

6.b.iv.



6.b.v.





Agenda Item ___ 
April 15, 2024 

Prepared by Mike Bailey 
Administration 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Consider and approve amendment to the City Council’s employee agreements with the City 
Manager, City Attorney, and Municipal Judge. 
 
Attachments: 

Resolution amending the contracts of the City Manager, City Attorney, and Municipal 
Judge retroactive to their effective date. 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
The City Council has four employees that it is responsible for under our Charter. These are the 
City Manager, City Attorney, Municipal Judge, and City Treasurer. Three of these positions, City 
Manager, City Attorney, and Municipal Judge, have contracts with the City. The City Treasurer’s 
position is combined with the City’s Finance Director’s position by action of the Council, and 
therefore does not have a contract. 
 
The employees with contracts have a provision in their agreements that sets compensation based 
on an annual salary. The intent was that this annual salary be divided by the number of pay 
periods (26) and be paid biweekly at the same time and manner as other employees. This works 
well in a normal year, but every 11 years we have 27 pay periods in a year. In those rare, yet 
predictable odd years, a contract employee would receive 1/26th more in wages than identified 
in their annual compensation amount. This is how it works for all other employees, but it creates 
a technical issue for those whose wages are determined by a maximum annual amount. 
 
In order to resolve this issue, Staff is proposing that all of the Council’s employees’ agreements 
be amended to provide an exception in any year that did not have 26 pay periods. The attached 
resolution has been reviewed by the City Attorney. All future contracts will contain this language 
to avoid this in the future. 
 
Please schedule this for the consent agenda at the May City Council meeting. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Approve the attached resolution amending the contracts of the City Council’s contract 
employees.  

6.c.i.



RESOLUTION NO.  _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
AMENDING THE AGREEMENTS FOR THE CITY ATTORNEY, MUNICIPAL 
JUDGE, AND CITY MANAGER. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council employs three contract employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, these contract employees are compensated via annual salary; and 
 
WHEREAS, it was the intent that these employees be paid biweekly at the same time 

and manner as other employees of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, every eleven years, there is a year that contains twenty-seven pay periods; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, years with twenty-seven pay periods create a technical issue that must be 

resolved so that contract employees may receive the intended compensation.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Bartlesville City Council amends the 

City’s agreements with the City Attorney, Municipal Judge, and City Manager to provide 
that those annual salaries shall be paid in bi-weekly installments equal to 1/26th of the 
employee’s annual salary, and in the event that there is other than twenty-six pay periods in 
a year, these employees shall be paid the bi-weekly installment indicated herein for all pay 
periods without regard to the annual base salary. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this amendment shall be retroactive to the initial 
effective date of all contracts subject to this provision. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma, held the 6th day of May 2024. 
 
 
 City of Bartlesville 
 
 

______________________________ 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 



6.c.ii.







































Agenda Item ___ 
April 15, 2024 

Prepared by Mike Bailey 
Administration 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Consider and approve renewal of City Manager’s employment agreement. 
 
Attachments: 

Agreement between City Manager and City of Bartlesville 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
On June 30, 2024, the agreement between the City of Bartlesville and the City Manager will 
expire after its second three-year term. The agreement calls for a renewal to be placed on the 
Council’s consent agenda at least 90 days prior to July 1, 2024. We have missed that deadline, 
but there is still sufficient time 
 
The attached agreement is the same as the previous agreement except for the items mentioned 
here.  
 

• Dates were updated to provide for another three-year term. 
• Compensation was updated to include current salary. No provision for raises in the current 

year is provided. In lieu of compensation, a section was added relating to a dedicated 
retirement account more fully described below. 

• Vehicle allowance section was increased to account for inflation. 
• Section 3.I. was added in lieu of compensation increases for the first year of the 

agreement. Our current retirement provider, OkMRF, has a City Manager focused 
retirement plan (CMO). This plan will be of benefit to the City in recruiting and retaining 
future City Managers. As the plan does not require contributions to Social Security or 
Medicare, there are savings both for the employer and employee. The amount proposed 
for a contribution to the plan in the first-year costs about $200 less than if the City 
provided standard raises in this year. 

• Severance is increased from 8 months to 9 months. 
• All other sections remain the same. 

 
The contract has been reviewed by the City Attorney. 
 
Please schedule this for the consent agenda at the April City Council meeting. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Approve the attached agreement between the City and City Manager.  

6.d.i.



1  

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered on this 7th 3rd day of June, 20214, by and between 
the City of Bartlesville, hereinafter called Employer, and Michael Bailey, hereinafter called 
Employee, both of whom understand and agree as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Employer to: 
 
1. Secure and retain the services of Employee and to provide inducement for him to 

remain in such employment. 
 
2. To make possible full work productivity by assuring Employee’s morale and peace of 

mind with respect to future security. 
 
3. To provide a just means for terminating Employee’s services at such time as he may be 

unable to fully discharge his duties due to age or disability or when the Employer may 
desire to otherwise terminate his employment. 

 
AND WHEREAS, Employee desires to continue employment as City Manager of said City. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties 

hereto agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: DUTIES 
 
A. The City of Bartlesville hereby agrees to employ Michael Bailey, as City Manager of said 

organization, to perform the functions and duties specified in the City Charter, City 
Ordinances, and applicable Oklahoma State Statutes. 

 
SECTION 2: TERM 
 
A. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the 

Employer to terminate the services of Employee at any time, subject only to the provisions of 
the City Ordinances, Oklahoma State Statutes, and as set forth in this Agreement herein. 

 
B. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the 

Employee to resign, at any time, from his position with the Employer, subject only to the 
provisions set forth in this Agreement herein. This Agreement shall become effective on the 
1st day of July, 20214, and shall remain in effect until June 30, 20247, at which time a new 
Agreement, for another three (3) year term, with the same terms and conditions, shall be 
included on the Consent Agenda for routine approval at least ninety (90) days prior to July 1, 



2  

2024. The failure to obtain routine approval of a new Agreement, for the following three (3) 
year term, shall constitute a non-renewal and Employee, at Employee's sole discretion, may 
elect to treat the non-renewal as a termination which will activate the severance benefits 
portion of this Agreement, benefitting Employee. 

 
SECTION 3: BASE SALARY, HEALTH INSURANCE, AND OTHER BENEFITS 
 
A. The Employer agrees to pay Employee, for his services rendered pursuant hereto, an annual 

base salary of One Hundred and Sixty-SevenNinety-Five Thousand Three-Six Hundred and 
Fifty-OneNinety-Two Dollars ($167195,351692) to be paid in bi-weekly installments of 
Seven-Thousand Five-Hundred and Twenty-Six Dollars and Sixty-Two cents ($7,526.62) 
for the effective period of this Agreement and for each year thereafter until and unless 
modified as provided herein. Said annual base salary shall be payable in installments at the 
same time as other employees of the City are paid. In the event that there are more than 26 
pay periods in a year, employee shall be paid the bi-weekly amount indicated herein for all 
pay periods without regard to the annual base salary. In addition, Employee shall receive 
longevity pay based on his entire employment with the City of Bartlesville to the same extent 
and on the same schedule as is paid other employees of the City. The Employer further agrees 
that Employee’s salary and performance shall be reviewed on an annual basis, with an 
appropriate salary adjustment provided, as approved by the Employer, based upon the 
Employee’s performance. 

 
B. The Employer agrees to provide to Employee health insurance and dental coverage and other 

benefits provided other employees in the same manner as such are provided to said 
employees. 

 
C. The Employer agrees to pay Employee the sum of Seven Eight Hundred and Fifty Dollars 

($78050), in advance, each month as a vehicle allowance.  
 
D. Employee shall accrue vacation leave and sick leave at the same rate as any other 

Management Employees with the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, and Employee shall be 
allowed to carry-over all unused accrued leave balances. Payment of unused leave time upon 
separation from employment shall be governed by the rules and regulations applicable to all 
other employees of the City of Bartlesville, OK. Employee will advise Mayor in advance of 
any absence from work of Employee for leave purposes at least three (3) days in advance of 
commencement of leave. 

 
E. Employee shall be provided holiday leave and all other forms of paid leave which is 

consistent with leave provided all other municipal employees. 
 
F. Employer shall provide Employee with the use of a cellular telephone and tablet. Employee 



3  

agrees to make the telephone number available to appropriate municipal officials. 
 
G. The Employer recognizes that the Employee must devote a great deal of time outside normal 

office hours, to the business of the City, and to that extent, the Employee is authorized to 
take compensatory time-off as he deems appropriate during normal business hours. In 
consideration for Employer agreeing to provide Employee with compensatory time-off, 
Employee acknowledges and agrees that Employer will not be required to compensate 
Employee for any overtime liabilities incurred by Employee while performing his duties as 
City Manager for the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma. Furthermore, the use of such 
compensatory time-off shall not be charged against the Employee’s accrued vacation leave 
or sick leave. 

 
H. The Employer agrees to contribute the same percentage payments to the Retirement Plan of 

the City of Bartlesville as it makes for other general employees of the City of Bartlesville. 
 
H.I. The Employer agrees to contribute Seventeen Thousand dollars ($17,000) in the first year of 

this agreement to a I.R.C. § 401(b) plan established for the benefit of Employee and for each 
year thereafter until and unless modified as provided herein. Said contribution shall be payable 
in a like and similar manner as the employer contributions made by the City to the retirement 
plans of general employees. Said contribution shall be in-lieu of a pay increase during the first 
year of this Agreement and therefore shall be increased annually in the same proportion as the 
base salary identified in Section 3.A. of this agreement as authorized under applicable law.  

 
I.J. The Employer agrees that other fringe benefits and working conditions applicable generally 

to management employees of the City of Bartlesville, as the same now exist or may later be 
amended, shall also apply to the Manager, except where such benefits and conditions are 
specifically enumerated within this Agreement or are inconsistent with its terms. 

 
SECTION 4: DUES AND EXPENSES 
 
A. The Employer agrees to pay the professional dues for the Employee’s membership in the 

International City/County Management Association, the City Management Association of 
Oklahoma, the American Society for Public Administration, and other organizations that may 
benefit Employee’s professional development. Additionally, Employer agrees to pay for the 
renewal and all continuing education requirements for Employee’s CPA license. 

 
B. The Employer agrees to reimburse Employee for all business-related expenses incurred by 

Employee. 
 
  



4  

SECTION 5: CHAIN OF COMMAND 
 
A. Employer acknowledges that contact between City employee(s) and Councilmember(s) will 

occur from time-to-time. However, in order to preserve the chain of command as well as 
ensure the efficient operations of the City of Bartlesville, the Employer and Employee agree: 

 
1. With the exception of the City Manager, City Attorney, City Treasurer, and Municipal 

Judge, and except for the purpose of inquiry, the city council and its members shall 
deal with the administrative service solely through the city manager, and neither the 
council nor any member thereof shall give orders to any subordinates of the city 
manager, either publicly or privately. The city manager may determine the proper 
method of interaction and communication between the city council and staff and shall 
notify the city council of the same, in writing. (Bartlesville City Charter Art. 5 Sect. 
10) 

 
SECTION 6: TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY 
 
A. Pursuant to Oklahoma State Statutes, the Employer reserves the right to terminate Employee 

at any time, for any reason or for no specific reason. 
 

1. Any Councilmember who desires to include an agenda item to discuss the termination 
of the City Manager shall advise the City Manager of the basis for termination in 
writing prior to doing so, and provide the City Manager with not less than thirty (30) 
business days to provide a written response to the requesting Councilmember. 

 
2. If the City Manager’s written response does not resolve the dispute to the satisfaction 

of the Councilmember, then the Mayor, City Manager and Councilmember shall meet 
in an attempt to resolve the dispute. If the dispute is initiated by the Mayor, then the 
Vice Mayor, City Manager and Councilmember shall meet in an attempt to resolve the 
dispute. 

 
3. If upon meeting, the dispute is not resolved, the possible termination of the City 

Manager may be included on the next agenda if requested, in writing, to the City 
Manager, by the requesting Councilmember. 

 
4. These procedures shall not apply to any allegation of criminal conduct nor shall they 

apply to an annual routine performance review in which the City Council evaluates, 
reviews, and/or discusses the job performance of the City Manager. 

  



5  

 
B. Employer agrees that, in the event Employee is terminated, severance pay shall be allowed 

Employee pursuant to the policy set forth below, unless Employee is terminated for just 
cause, with just cause being defined as the conviction of a felony or an act of corruption. The 
parties further agree that just cause shall not include any matter which concerns a 
discretionary management decision or action by Employee, in good faith, while performing 
his duties as City Manager for the City of Bartlesville. 

 
 Severance pay shall be paid as follows: 

 
1. Severance pay shall be paid in an amount equal to eight nine (89) months annual salary, 

based on the Employee’s current salary rate at the time of termination, including all 
benefits and any accrued vacation leave and sick leave. 

 
2. Severance pay shall include all benefits existing at the time of termination; said benefits 

to continue for the entire severance period. 
 
3. Severance pay shall be paid in installments at the same time as other employees of the 

City are paid beginning with the first pay period immediately following Employee’s 
termination. 

 
C. For purposes of complying with the severance provisions of this Agreement, appropriations 

held as unencumbered fund balances, in any fund or account of the City of Bartlesville, shall 
be deemed to be available and authorized for transfer to the appropriate salary and benefit 
expenditure accounts to ensure fulfillment of this provision of the Employment Agreement. 

 
D. In the event the Employer, at any time during the employment term, reduces the salary or 

other financial benefit of Employee, in a greater percentage than an applicable across-the-
board reduction for all other employees, or in the event the Employer refuses, following 
written notice, to comply with any other provisions benefitting Employee herein, or the 
Employee resigns following a suggestion from the Employer that he resign, or the Employee 
is suspended from duty without pay for any reason, Employee may, at his sole option, be 
deemed to be “terminated” within the meaning and context of the severance pay provision, 
contained in Section 6, of this Agreement. 

 
E. In the event Employee voluntarily resigns his position with the City of Bartlesville without 

inducement as set out in paragraph D above, then the Employee shall not be entitled to 
severance pay and benefits as set forth in paragraphs B and C above. In the event of such 
voluntary resignation, the Employee shall give the Employer four (4) weeks advance notice, 
in writing. 

  



6  

 
F. If the City Charter of the City of Bartlesville is amended to delete the Council/Manager form 

of government or the City Manager’s position, Employee may, at his sole option, be deemed 
to be “terminated” within the meaning and context of the severance pay provision, contained 
in Section 6, of this Agreement. 

 
G. If Employee becomes permanently or temporarily disabled due to sickness, accident, injury, 

mental incapacity, or health and is unable to perform his duties, and during such period of 
disablement the Council chooses to terminate his employment as City Manager, then 
Employer agrees to pay Employee for all accrued sick leave in addition to the severance pay 
contained in Section 6 of this agreement.  



7  

 
SECTION 7: RESPONSIBILITIES AFTER TERMINATION 
 
A. The parties agree that following termination of Employee’s employment, certain 

responsibilities to the City of Bartlesville, may continue to exist, such as assistance with 
transaction to a new administration, completion of work in progress and pending litigation. 
The parties agree that during the period of time for which severance benefits are being paid, 
Employee shall assist with such pending matters to such extent as needed and requested by 
City, not to exceed twenty (20) hours per month at mutually agreeable times, without 
additional compensation and with reimbursement of actual, necessary expenses. The parties 
further agree that if additional services are needed during a time period in which no severance 
pay is being paid, Employee shall be compensated at either his last base salary (calculated 
hourly) or his base salary existing at the time services are requested (calculated and paid 
hourly), at Employee’s sole option, with reimbursement of actual, necessary expenses. 

 
SECTION 8: INDEMNIFICATION AND SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 
A. Employer shall defend, save harmless and indemnify Employee against any tort, professional 

liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless or otherwise, arising out 
of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of Employee’s duties. Employer 
will compromise and settle any such claim or suit and pay the amount of any settlement or 
judgment rendered thereon. 

 
B. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held unconstitutional, 

invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion thereof, shall be 
deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
 
  



8  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Bartlesville City Council has appropriated sufficient funds to 
satisfy the terms and conditions of this Agreement and executed it on behalf of its Mayor and 
attested to by the City Clerk, and the Employee has signed and executed this Agreement, which 
becomes effective commencing the 1st day of July, 2021. 
 
ATTESTED AND SEALED: APPROVED: 
 
 
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
City of Bartlesville, City Clerk City of Bartlesville, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED: 
 
 
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
City of Bartlesville, City Attorney Employee 



1  

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered on this 3rd day of June, 2024, by and between the 
City of Bartlesville, hereinafter called Employer, and Michael Bailey, hereinafter called 
Employee, both of whom understand and agree as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Employer to: 
 
1. Secure and retain the services of Employee and to provide inducement for him to 

remain in such employment. 
 
2. To make possible full work productivity by assuring Employee’s morale and peace of 

mind with respect to future security. 
 
3. To provide a just means for terminating Employee’s services at such time as he may be 

unable to fully discharge his duties due to age or disability or when the Employer may 
desire to otherwise terminate his employment. 

 
AND WHEREAS, Employee desires to continue employment as City Manager of said City. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties 

hereto agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: DUTIES 
 
A. The City of Bartlesville hereby agrees to employ Michael Bailey, as City Manager of said 

organization, to perform the functions and duties specified in the City Charter, City 
Ordinances, and applicable Oklahoma State Statutes. 

 
SECTION 2: TERM 
 
A. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the 

Employer to terminate the services of Employee at any time, subject only to the provisions of 
the City Ordinances, Oklahoma State Statutes, and as set forth in this Agreement herein. 

 
B. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the 

Employee to resign, at any time, from his position with the Employer, subject only to the 
provisions set forth in this Agreement herein. This Agreement shall become effective on the 
1st day of July, 2024, and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2027, at which time a new 
Agreement, for another three (3) year term, with the same terms and conditions, shall be 
included on the Consent Agenda for routine approval at least ninety (90) days prior to July 1, 



2  

2024. The failure to obtain routine approval of a new Agreement, for the following three (3) 
year term, shall constitute a non-renewal and Employee, at Employee's sole discretion, may 
elect to treat the non-renewal as a termination which will activate the severance benefits 
portion of this Agreement, benefitting Employee. 

 
SECTION 3: BASE SALARY, HEALTH INSURANCE, AND OTHER BENEFITS 
 
A. The Employer agrees to pay Employee, for his services rendered pursuant hereto, an annual 

base salary of One Hundred and Ninety-Five Thousand Six Hundred and Ninety-Two Dollars 
($195,692) to be paid in bi-weekly installments of Seven-Thousand Five-Hundred and 
Twenty-Six Dollars and Sixty-Two cents ($7,526.62) for the effective period of this 
Agreement and for each year thereafter until and unless modified as provided herein. Said 
annual base salary shall be payable in installments at the same time as other employees of 
the City are paid. In the event that there are more than 26 pay periods in a year, employee 
shall be paid the bi-weekly amount indicated herein for all pay periods without regard to the 
annual base salary. In addition, Employee shall receive longevity pay based on his entire 
employment with the City of Bartlesville to the same extent and on the same schedule as is 
paid other employees of the City. The Employer further agrees that Employee’s salary and 
performance shall be reviewed on an annual basis, with an appropriate salary adjustment 
provided, as approved by the Employer, based upon the Employee’s performance. 

 
B. The Employer agrees to provide to Employee health insurance and dental coverage and other 

benefits provided other employees in the same manner as such are provided to said 
employees. 

 
C. The Employer agrees to pay Employee the sum of Eight Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($850), 

in advance, each month as a vehicle allowance.  
 
D. Employee shall accrue vacation leave and sick leave at the same rate as any other 

Management Employees with the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, and Employee shall be 
allowed to carry-over all unused accrued leave balances. Payment of unused leave time upon 
separation from employment shall be governed by the rules and regulations applicable to all 
other employees of the City of Bartlesville, OK. Employee will advise Mayor in advance of 
any absence from work of Employee for leave purposes at least three (3) days in advance of 
commencement of leave. 

 
E. Employee shall be provided holiday leave and all other forms of paid leave which is 

consistent with leave provided all other municipal employees. 
 
F. Employer shall provide Employee with the use of a cellular telephone and tablet. Employee 

agrees to make the telephone number available to appropriate municipal officials. 



3  

 
G. The Employer recognizes that the Employee must devote a great deal of time outside normal 

office hours, to the business of the City, and to that extent, the Employee is authorized to 
take compensatory time-off as he deems appropriate during normal business hours. In 
consideration for Employer agreeing to provide Employee with compensatory time-off, 
Employee acknowledges and agrees that Employer will not be required to compensate 
Employee for any overtime liabilities incurred by Employee while performing his duties as 
City Manager for the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma. Furthermore, the use of such 
compensatory time-off shall not be charged against the Employee’s accrued vacation leave 
or sick leave. 

 
H. The Employer agrees to contribute the same percentage payments to the Retirement Plan of 

the City of Bartlesville as it makes for other general employees of the City of Bartlesville. 
 
I. The Employer agrees to contribute Seventeen Thousand dollars ($17,000) in the first year of 

this agreement to a I.R.C. § 401(b) plan established for the benefit of Employee and for each 
year thereafter until and unless modified as provided herein. Said contribution shall be payable 
in a like and similar manner as the employer contributions made by the City to the retirement 
plans of general employees. Said contribution shall be in-lieu of a pay increase during the first 
year of this Agreement and therefore shall be increased annually in the same proportion as the 
base salary identified in Section 3.A. of this agreement as authorized under applicable law.  

 
J. The Employer agrees that other fringe benefits and working conditions applicable generally 

to management employees of the City of Bartlesville, as the same now exist or may later be 
amended, shall also apply to the Manager, except where such benefits and conditions are 
specifically enumerated within this Agreement or are inconsistent with its terms. 

 
SECTION 4: DUES AND EXPENSES 
 
A. The Employer agrees to pay the professional dues for the Employee’s membership in the 

International City/County Management Association, the City Management Association of 
Oklahoma, the American Society for Public Administration, and other organizations that may 
benefit Employee’s professional development. Additionally, Employer agrees to pay for the 
renewal and all continuing education requirements for Employee’s CPA license. 

 
B. The Employer agrees to reimburse Employee for all business-related expenses incurred by 

Employee. 
 
  



4  

SECTION 5: CHAIN OF COMMAND 
 
A. Employer acknowledges that contact between City employee(s) and Councilmember(s) will 

occur from time-to-time. However, in order to preserve the chain of command as well as 
ensure the efficient operations of the City of Bartlesville, the Employer and Employee agree: 

 
1. With the exception of the City Manager, City Attorney, City Treasurer, and Municipal 

Judge, and except for the purpose of inquiry, the city council and its members shall 
deal with the administrative service solely through the city manager, and neither the 
council nor any member thereof shall give orders to any subordinates of the city 
manager, either publicly or privately. The city manager may determine the proper 
method of interaction and communication between the city council and staff and shall 
notify the city council of the same, in writing. (Bartlesville City Charter Art. 5 Sect. 
10) 

 
SECTION 6: TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY 
 
A. Pursuant to Oklahoma State Statutes, the Employer reserves the right to terminate Employee 

at any time, for any reason or for no specific reason. 
 

1. Any Councilmember who desires to include an agenda item to discuss the termination 
of the City Manager shall advise the City Manager of the basis for termination in 
writing prior to doing so, and provide the City Manager with not less than thirty (30) 
business days to provide a written response to the requesting Councilmember. 

 
2. If the City Manager’s written response does not resolve the dispute to the satisfaction 

of the Councilmember, then the Mayor, City Manager and Councilmember shall meet 
in an attempt to resolve the dispute. If the dispute is initiated by the Mayor, then the 
Vice Mayor, City Manager and Councilmember shall meet in an attempt to resolve the 
dispute. 

 
3. If upon meeting, the dispute is not resolved, the possible termination of the City 

Manager may be included on the next agenda if requested, in writing, to the City 
Manager, by the requesting Councilmember. 

 
4. These procedures shall not apply to any allegation of criminal conduct nor shall they 

apply to an annual routine performance review in which the City Council evaluates, 
reviews, and/or discusses the job performance of the City Manager. 

  



5  

 
B. Employer agrees that, in the event Employee is terminated, severance pay shall be allowed 

Employee pursuant to the policy set forth below, unless Employee is terminated for just 
cause, with just cause being defined as the conviction of a felony or an act of corruption. The 
parties further agree that just cause shall not include any matter which concerns a 
discretionary management decision or action by Employee, in good faith, while performing 
his duties as City Manager for the City of Bartlesville. 

 
 Severance pay shall be paid as follows: 

 
1. Severance pay shall be paid in an amount equal to nine (9) months annual salary, based 

on the Employee’s current salary rate at the time of termination, including all benefits 
and any accrued vacation leave and sick leave. 

 
2. Severance pay shall include all benefits existing at the time of termination; said benefits 

to continue for the entire severance period. 
 
3. Severance pay shall be paid in installments at the same time as other employees of the 

City are paid beginning with the first pay period immediately following Employee’s 
termination. 

 
C. For purposes of complying with the severance provisions of this Agreement, appropriations 

held as unencumbered fund balances, in any fund or account of the City of Bartlesville, shall 
be deemed to be available and authorized for transfer to the appropriate salary and benefit 
expenditure accounts to ensure fulfillment of this provision of the Employment Agreement. 

 
D. In the event the Employer, at any time during the employment term, reduces the salary or 

other financial benefit of Employee, in a greater percentage than an applicable across-the-
board reduction for all other employees, or in the event the Employer refuses, following 
written notice, to comply with any other provisions benefitting Employee herein, or the 
Employee resigns following a suggestion from the Employer that he resign, or the Employee 
is suspended from duty without pay for any reason, Employee may, at his sole option, be 
deemed to be “terminated” within the meaning and context of the severance pay provision, 
contained in Section 6, of this Agreement. 

 
E. In the event Employee voluntarily resigns his position with the City of Bartlesville without 

inducement as set out in paragraph D above, then the Employee shall not be entitled to 
severance pay and benefits as set forth in paragraphs B and C above. In the event of such 
voluntary resignation, the Employee shall give the Employer four (4) weeks advance notice, 
in writing. 

  



6  

 
F. If the City Charter of the City of Bartlesville is amended to delete the Council/Manager form 

of government or the City Manager’s position, Employee may, at his sole option, be deemed 
to be “terminated” within the meaning and context of the severance pay provision, contained 
in Section 6, of this Agreement. 

 
G. If Employee becomes permanently or temporarily disabled due to sickness, accident, injury, 

mental incapacity, or health and is unable to perform his duties, and during such period of 
disablement the Council chooses to terminate his employment as City Manager, then 
Employer agrees to pay Employee for all accrued sick leave in addition to the severance pay 
contained in Section 6 of this agreement. 

 
SECTION 7: RESPONSIBILITIES AFTER TERMINATION 
 
A. The parties agree that following termination of Employee’s employment, certain 

responsibilities to the City of Bartlesville, may continue to exist, such as assistance with 
transaction to a new administration, completion of work in progress and pending litigation. 
The parties agree that during the period of time for which severance benefits are being paid, 
Employee shall assist with such pending matters to such extent as needed and requested by 
City, not to exceed twenty (20) hours per month at mutually agreeable times, without 
additional compensation and with reimbursement of actual, necessary expenses. The parties 
further agree that if additional services are needed during a time period in which no severance 
pay is being paid, Employee shall be compensated at either his last base salary (calculated 
hourly) or his base salary existing at the time services are requested (calculated and paid 
hourly), at Employee’s sole option, with reimbursement of actual, necessary expenses. 

 
SECTION 8: INDEMNIFICATION AND SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 
A. Employer shall defend, save harmless and indemnify Employee against any tort, professional 

liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless or otherwise, arising out 
of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of Employee’s duties. Employer 
will compromise and settle any such claim or suit and pay the amount of any settlement or 
judgment rendered thereon. 

 
B. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held unconstitutional, 

invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion thereof, shall be 
deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
 
  



7  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Bartlesville City Council has appropriated sufficient funds to 
satisfy the terms and conditions of this Agreement and executed it on behalf of its Mayor and 
attested to by the City Clerk, and the Employee has signed and executed this Agreement, which 
becomes effective commencing the 1st day of July, 2021. 
 
ATTESTED AND SEALED: APPROVED: 
 
 
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
City of Bartlesville, City Clerk City of Bartlesville, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED: 
 
 
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
City of Bartlesville, City Attorney Employee 



6.d.ii.





6.d.iii.















6.d.iv.







Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
Agenda Item ___    

May 1, 2024 
Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 

Water Utilities  
 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of Lease Agreement Amendment #1 with Intuitech for equipment to 
conduct a pilot study for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion 
Improvements.   

Attachments: 
 Orginal Lease Agreement 
 Amendment #1 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

As part of the engineering design for the wastewater treatment plant water reuse 
component, a pilot study is being conducted to demonstrate performance of the 
proposed treatment, and to evaluate different chemical and media configurations.  
The treatment units for this pilot study are being leased from Intuitech.  The lease 
started February 1 and ends on May 30 at a cost of $112,872 ($93,211 is the lease of 
the equipment, which is $5,483/week, and the remainder is for transport and training).  
Staff would like to extend the lease of these units for another month to facilitate 
additional testing of the proposed treatment process.  This unit is available to extend 
the lease using the existing lease rate of $5,483 per week.  Thus, the extra month will 
add $21,932 to the contract.     
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 

Funding for the lease will be through the Wastewater Capital Reserve Fund.  
$2,816,748 is available for the pilot study, testing and professional services portion of 
the project.  The extension of the lease of this unit ($21,932) is within the available 
budget. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of the lease amendment #1 with Intuitech for the 
equipment to conduct a pilot study for $21,932. 

6.d.v.









 
 

Lease Equipment 
Agreement 

 
 
 

Amendment Number __1__ 
 
The purpose of this amendment is to modify terms of the Lease Agreement between Intuitech, Inc., the Lessor, and City of 
Bartlesville, the Lessee, in accordance with the Changes clause in the Lease Agreement. 
 
This amendment will be binding and in full force when signed below by authorized representatives of both the Lessor and the 
Lessee. 
 
Both the Lessor and the Lessee agree to the following amendments and understandings. 
 

1. 5. Term & Rent.  The Lease duration will be 1721 weeks, commencing 1 February 2024 and continuing until 30 May 2024 27 June 2024. 
 
 
LESSOR  (Intuitech, Inc.)    LESSEE 
 
 
 

Signed            Signed             
 
Name  Brock Emerson          Name              
 
Title  CEO        Title              
 
Date  29 April 2024       Date              
 



6.d.vi.







 6.d.vii.













































Agenda Item ____ 
April 26, 2024 

Prepared by Mike Bailey, City Manager 
Administration 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Take action to vote to reelect Mike Bailey and Craig Stephenson to the OMAG Board of Trustees. 
 
Attachments: 

OMAG Ballot 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The City of Bartlesville is a member of the Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group (OMAG), 
which is a non-profit, risk sharing pool for Oklahoma municipalities formed as an inter-local 
trust that provides our liability and property insurances.  
 
The governing body of OMAG is comprised of 7 trustees who are elected from OMAG’s 
members. Trustees can be elected or appointed officials of the member municipality. I currently 
serve on the OMAG Board of Trustees. 
 
There are 8 candidates for these 2 positions. Both myself and the City Manager of Ponca City 
have served on this board for over a decade and I would recommend that we vote to reelect both 
of the incumbents.  
 
Please place this on the consent agenda for the May City Council meeting. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Vote for Mike Bailey and Craig Stephenson as OMAG Trustees. 

 6.e.i.



Page 1 of 2

BALLOT 
OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL ASSURANCE GROUP 

2024 Election of TWO Trustees 
For a three-year term starting July 1, 2024 

The biographical sketch on the next page for each nominee was written by the person who made the nomination. YOU 
MAY VOTE FOR TWO (2) NOMINEES by placing a check mark next to their names below. 

____ Mike Bailey, City Manager, Bartlesville (Incumbent) 

____ Craig Stephenson, City Manager, Ponca City (Incumbent) 

____ Donalynn Blazek-Scherler, City Clerk, Lawton 

____ Gary A. Jones, City Manager, Altus 

____ Tammy Kretchmar, City Manager, Yukon 

____ David M. Mason, Mayor, Enid 

____     Cody Roe, City Manager, McLoud 

____ Micheal Shannon, Interim City Manager, Guymon 

SIGN AND ATTEST 

Ballot cast by the governing body of the municipality of  

__________________________________ 

Signed:  ___________________________________ 
      Mayor 

Attested:  __________________________________   Date:  ______________________, 2024 
      Clerk 

FAILURE TO PROPERLY SUBMIT THIS BALLOT WILL INVALIDATE THE BALLOT. 

Your Ballot must be received by OMAG no later than May 15, 2024, by: 

(1) emailing the ballot to elections@omag.org;
(2) sending the ballot to OMAG by mail to 3650 S. Boulevard, Edmond, OK 73013; or
(3) sending a facsimile of the ballot to OMAG at (405) 657-1401.

SEE REVERSE FOR BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES 

mailto:elections@omag.org
mlbailey
Text Box
X

mlbailey
Text Box
X



  

Page 2 of 2 
 

BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCHES 
 

MIKE BAILEY (Incumbent) Mike is the City Manager for Bartlesville and has been with the City for 
18 years. Mike is a licensed CPA who has worked with many local governments throughout his career. He 
has served on the OMAG Board since 2007 and is also on the boards of CMAO and OMSCC. (Bartlesville 
participates in the Municipal Liability Protection Plan and the Municipal Property Protection Plan.) 
 
CRAIG STEPHENSON (Incumbent) Craig is a current incumbent on the OMAG Board. He has 37 
years of municipal (government) experience serving communities as Assistant City Manager and City 
Manager. Craig holds Bachelor’s and Master’s degrees in Political Science and has earned the ICMA 
Credentialed and Oklahoma Accredited Manager designation. (Ponca City participates in the Municipal 
Property Protection Plan and the Municipal Liability Protection Plan.) 
 
DONALYNN BLAZEK-SCHERLER Donalynn is an excellent candidate to serve as a trustee for the 
Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group (OMAG). She’s an extremely dedicated and hard working 
employee who will no doubt be an asset to the board.  Ms. Blazek-Scherler has been an exemplary 
employee for the City of Lawton for several years. (Lawton participates in the Municipal Liability 
Protection Plan and the Municipal Property Protection Plan.) 
 
GARY JONES City Manager Altus September 2019-present. Oklahoma State Auditor 2011-2019 where 
he received the 2016 “Sunshine Award” and was named an honorary Fire-Fighter and friend of retired 
Teachers. Comanche County Commissioner 1995-1999. Received the “Superior Achievement Award” 
from the Oklahoma Good Roads and Streets Association. BS Business Administration/Accounting-
Cameron University. (Altus participates in the Municipal Liability Protection Plan and the Municipal 
Property Protection Plan, and the Workers’ Compensation Plan.) 
 
TAMMY KRETCHMAR Tammy Kretchmar, serving the City of Yukon since 1996, advanced to City 
Manager in 2021. She actively engages in professional associations like ICMA and CMAO. Tammy’s 
exceptional leadership in Yukon has earned her the 2017 Don Rider Award and the 2022 Gerald Wilkins 
and Jeff Shockley Award. (Yukon participates in the Municipal Liability Protection Plan, the Municipal 
Property Protection Plan, and the Workers’ Compensation Plan.) 
 
DAVID MASON David has a BS degree in Education and a Master’s Degree in Administration. He 
entered the insurance business in 2003 and quickly advanced to District Manager of 29 agencies.  He later 
became VP/Director of Sales for a large Independent agency helping to increase sales $100M over 5 years. 
(Enid participates in the Municipal Property Protection Plan and the Municipal Liability Protection Plan.) 
 
CODY ROE  Currently serving as City Manager for the city of McLoud, Cody has over 14 years in 
Municipal Government where he has served as the Parks Director, Emergency Manager, Operations 
Director, Public Works Director, and Assistant City Manager.  Cody is actively involved in Pottawatomie 
County and serves on the COEDD Board. (McLoud participates in the Municipal Liability Protection Plan, 
the Municipal Property Protection Plan, and the Workers’ Compensation Plan.) 
 
MICHEAL SHANNON Mike Shannon, a lifelong cowboy and team roper of the Oklahoma Panhandle 
has worked in municipal government over 45 years.  During that time, he worked in the private sector 
managing a small communication company for 9 years, returning to municipal government as Interim City 
Manager for the City of Guymon. (Guymon participates in the Municipal Liability Protection Plan, the 
Municipal Property Protection Plan, and the Workers’ Compensation Plan.) 



Agenda Item ___ 
April 23, 2024 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the nine months ending March30, 2024.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for March 30, 2024 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for March 2024; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 N/A 

 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for March 30, 2024. 

6.f.i.



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Loren Roszel
Ward 3 - Jim Curd, Vice Mayor
Ward 4 - Vacant
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger
Finance Director

Alicia Shelton
Accountant

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Nine Months Ended March 31, 2024

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

72.0%

74.0%

76.0%

78.0%

80.0%

82.0%

84.0%

86.0%

 -
 2,000,000
 4,000,000
 6,000,000
 8,000,000

 10,000,000
 12,000,000
 14,000,000
 16,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

72.0%

74.0%

76.0%

78.0%

80.0%

82.0%

84.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

 -
 1,000,000
 2,000,000
 3,000,000
 4,000,000
 5,000,000
 6,000,000
 7,000,000
 8,000,000
 9,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

72.0%

73.0%

74.0%

75.0%

76.0%

77.0%

78.0%

79.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 17,643,955$  13,232,966$  13,629,278$  -$                   13,629,278$  77.2% 13,602,985$  75.1%
Use Tax 2,500,000       1,875,000       3,737,026       -                     3,737,026       149.5% 425,813          27.5%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,582,000       1,186,500       1,223,511       -                     1,223,511       77.3% 1,250,693       76.9%
Licenses and Permits 256,700          192,525          228,342          -                     228,342          89.0% 226,147          87.9%
Intergovernmental 700,400          525,300          546,547          -                     546,547          78.0% 553,818          77.7%
Charges for Services 478,800          359,100          448,597          -                     448,597          93.7% 406,255          67.9%
Court Costs 160,000          120,000          147,420          -                     147,420          92.1% 145,077          76.3%
Police/Traffic Fines 460,000          345,000          272,762          -                     272,762          59.3% 309,731          76.4%
Parking Fines 68,200            51,150            38,675            -                     38,675            56.7% 37,360            78.0%
Other Fines 80,400            60,300            48,018            -                     48,018            59.7% 52,443            74.7%
Investment Income 150,000          112,500          2,179,197       -                     2,179,197       1452.8% 906,045          94.5%
Miscellaneous Income 875,700          656,775          860,675          -                     860,675          98.3% 435,194          57.8%
Transfers In 6,561,228       4,920,921       4,920,924       -                     4,920,924       75.0% 6,878,209       75.0%

Total 31,517,383$  23,638,037$  28,280,972$  -$                   28,280,972$  89.7% 25,229,772$  73.2%

Expenditures:
General Government 8,965,657$     6,724,243$     5,848,642$     55,173$        5,903,815$     65.8% 6,120,795$     74.6%
Public Safety 16,639,031     12,479,273     12,248,850     157,820        12,406,670     74.6% 11,613,810     75.2%
Street 2,051,398       1,538,549       1,281,127       13,502          1,294,629       63.1% 1,365,440       75.9%
Culture and Recreation 3,666,412       2,749,809       2,452,731       7,196             2,459,927       67.1% 2,397,935       73.6%
Transfers Out 4,189,369       3,142,027       3,141,838       -                     3,141,838       75.0% 3,008,342       75.0%
Reserves 1,194,800       896,100          -                       -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 36,706,667$  27,530,001$  24,973,188$  233,691$      25,206,879$  68.7% 24,506,322$  74.9%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 6,559,526$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 3,307,784       

Ending Fund Balance 9,867,310$    

75% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 6,007,344$     4,505,508$     4,608,695$  -$                   4,608,695$     76.7% 4,454,332$     89.4%
Investment Income -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. 27,077             ######
Debt Proceeds -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 30,000             22,500             135,851        -                      135,851          452.8% 176,108          865.1%

Total 6,037,344$    4,528,008$    4,744,546$  -$                   4,744,546$    78.6% 4,657,517$    93.0%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 2,965,385$     2,224,039$     2,222,294$  711,739$      2,934,033$     98.9% 2,676,278$     100.3%
Wastewater Maint 861,009          645,757          579,785        15,289          595,074          69.1% 518,908          79.4%
BMA Expenses 27,735             20,801             27,730          -                      27,730             100.0% 27,870             N.A.
Transfers Out 1,646,975       1,235,231       1,235,234     -                      1,235,234       75.0% 1,231,934       85.5%
Reserves 88,790             66,593             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 5,589,894$    4,192,421$    4,065,043$  727,028$      4,792,071$    85.7% 4,454,991$    93.6%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 2,904,457$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 679,503        

Ending Fund Balance 3,583,960$  

75% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 11,091,140$  8,318,355$     7,986,772$     -$                    7,986,772$     72.0% 9,006,243$     85.7%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. 44,235            792.5%
Debt Proceeds -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous -                       -                       749,416          -                       749,416          N.A. 2,683               265.6%

Total 11,091,140$  8,318,355$    8,736,188$    -$                    8,736,188$    78.8% 9,053,161$    86.1%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 3,930,908$     2,948,181$     2,416,330$     112,799$       2,529,129$     64.3% 2,769,235$     99.6%
Water Administration 403,611          302,708          290,044          12,848            302,892          75.0% 283,868          84.1%
Water Distribution 2,251,525       1,688,644       1,259,540       (3,575)             1,255,965       55.8% 1,330,705       98.6%
BMA Expenses 3,826,024       2,869,518       1,745,139       (119,080)        1,626,059       42.5% 5,284,447       177.2%
Transfers Out 2,585,280       1,938,960       1,938,963       -                       1,938,963       75.0% 1,927,040       86.1%
Reserves 294,520          220,890          -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 13,291,868$  9,968,901$    7,650,016$    2,992$           7,653,008$    57.6% 11,595,296$  119.7%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 7,243,671$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 1,086,172       

Ending Fund Balance 8,329,843$    

75% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 6,055,185$     4,541,389$     4,636,027$       -$                   4,636,027$     76.6% 4,322,576$     74.8%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 173,239          45,669            102,729             -                     102,729          59.3% 121,788          73.2%
Transfers In -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.

Total 6,228,424$    4,587,058$    4,738,756$       -$                   4,738,756$    76.1% 4,444,364$    74.7%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,564,131$     2,673,098$     2,303,140$       132,664$      2,435,804$     68.3% 2,384,440$     73.0%
Transfers Out 2,649,730       1,987,298       1,987,300         -                     1,987,300       75.0% 1,985,586       75.0%
Reserves 134,997          101,248          -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 6,348,858$    4,761,644$    4,290,440$       132,664$     4,423,104$    69.7% 4,370,026$    73.9%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 322,482$          

Net Revenue (Expense) 448,316             

Ending Fund Balance 770,798$          

75% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,902,083     1,431,432    75%
E-911 Fund 1,095,403     870,578       79%
Special Library Fund 123,970        183,794       148%
Special Museum Fund -                     45,164          N/A
Municipal Airport Fund -                     75,583          N/A
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                     -                    N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund 55,000          81,945          149%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 25,000          26,100          104%
CDBG-COVID -                     -                    N/A
ARPA -                     -                    N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund -                     7,185            N/A
Neighborhood Park Fund -                     -                    N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,600            1,834            71%

Debt Service Fund 4,818,069     4,234,797    88%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,603,280     3,005,480    83%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                     23,200          N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                     -                    N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 47,880          47,880          100%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                     4,816            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     219,087       N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2021A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2022 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,900,000     6,900,000    100%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 663,654        522,967       79%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 72,245          54,185          75%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 94,205          70,655          75%
Municipal Airport Operating 585,975        562,428       96%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 93,460          77,761          83%
Health Insurance Fund 3,757,814     4,222,865    112%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 75,000          59,506          79%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 1,291,774     968,836       75%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 6,998,023     5,991,352    86%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                     -                    N/A

75% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 5,416,131     1,745,293    32%
E-911 Fund 1,226,020     849,147        69%
Special Library Fund 220,970        142,183        64%
Special Museum Fund 51,500           23,796          46%
Municipal Airport Fund 28,508           435               2%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 382,568        12,266          3%
Restricted Revenue Fund 350,441        111,640        32%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 65,940           52,414          79%
CDBG-COVID -                     -                     N/A
ARPA 1,000,000     750,001        75%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619             -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund 29,599           -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 12,303           200               2%

Debt Service Fund 4,820,069     1,709,124    35%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 6,164,456     1,169,941    19%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 27,542           (2,160)           -8%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 554,842        23,508          4%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 170,362        -                     0%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 55,577           7,447            13%
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     (520)              N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885             -                     0%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 28,659           -                     0%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 326,564        -                     0%
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 341,460        -                     0%
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 521,244        -                     0%
2022 G.O. Bond Fund 4,880,960     1,867,307    38%
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,900,000     75,634          1%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 665,922        530,721        80%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 79,562           17,045          21%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 94,230           29,687          32%
Municipal Airport Operating 670,036        471,073        70%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 430,000        121,183        28%
Health Insurance Fund 4,079,068     4,258,570    104%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 443,559        58,015          13%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 11,933,651   -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 12,390,050   2,757,985    22%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 7,791             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

75% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 3,705,288                 (112,903)      3,592,385     
E-911 Fund 214,997                    21,431          236,428        
Special Library Fund 290,970                    69,483          360,453        
Special Museum Fund 139,059                    21,368          160,427        
Municipal Airport Fund 80,702                       47,910          128,612        
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 463,144                    (10,088)         453,056        
Restricted Revenue Fund 409,319                    (8,619)           400,700        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 45,891                       (23,720)         22,171           
CDBG-COVID -                                 -                     -                     
ARPA 1,762,952                 (750,001)      1,012,951     
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619                         7,185            14,804           
Neighborhood Park Fund 60,222                       -                     60,222           
Cemetery Care Fund 10,055                       1,634            11,689           

Debt Service Fund 3,726,110                 2,525,673    6,251,783     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,737,112                 1,651,717    5,388,829     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 162,540                    (51,799)         110,741        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 840,690                    (226,154)      614,536        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 125,618                    47,880          173,498        
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 57,026                       (2,631)           54,395           
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                                 211,387        211,387        
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 7,686                         -                     7,686             
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,886                         -                     3,886             
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 12,444                       -                     12,444           
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 56,485                       -                     56,485           
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 52,547                       -                     52,547           
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 46,204                       -                     46,204           
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431                    -                     327,431        
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 397,717                    (35,219)         362,498        
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494                    -                     526,494        
2022A G.O. Bond Fund 6,765,084                 (2,699,809)   4,065,275     
2023 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 6,870,069    6,870,069     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 19,376                       20,300          39,676           
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 21,830                       37,227          59,057           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 23,562                       40,498          64,060           
Municipal Airport Operating 309,066                    96,001          405,067        

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 196,884                    (36,002)         160,882        
Health Insurance Fund 45,564                       (35,605)         9,959             
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 509,867                    (36,633)         473,234        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 11,933,651               968,836        12,902,487   
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 17,068,585               4,618,880    21,687,465   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,164                         -                     8,164             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

75% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



1 Investigate programs to recruit non-traditional employees and within schools. HR 10/23 100%

2
Within six months of adoption of Strategic plan, investigate potential vacation 
buyback program.

HR 10/23 100%

3 Implement a job swap program for employees. HR 10/23 100%
4 Hold employee appreciation luncheons twice yearly. HR 07/24 100%

5
Investigate ways to implement a flex-hours or work from home program for 
applicable employees.

HR 04/24 100%

1 Develop a committee to research best practices and accreditation programs. Admin 10/23 100% Committee has met and is gathering data.

2
Develop and implement a performance and reward-based evaluation process for 
general employees by July 1, 2023 with intent to negotiate this process for 
uniformed groups in the future.

HR 07/23 100%

3
Re-evaluate 311 and Enterprise Asset Management (E.A.M.) to determine how we 
can integrate these systems into our operating departments.

IT 04/24 75% Reevaluating options for software.

4
Revise and update our website using newest technologies and integrations to 
improve citizen satisfaction and e-gov capabilities.

CCO 10/24 55%

1
Create and publish annual digital report on overall City and departmental 
achievements, progress, and goals. Summary of report to be circulated in utility bill. 

Admin 09/24 25%
Changed the date to match up with our fiscal 
year.  Original completion date was 4/24.

2
Create and distribute an annual survey to obtain citizen feedback and requests for all 
City departments. Individual departments may also be surveyed individually as part 
of a larger survey plan.

Admin 04/24 25% Exploring existing system to collect data.

3
Create and distribute survey for employees to rate their department and the City as 
an overall employer by July 1, 2023.

HR 07/23 100%

4
Develop feedback cards for golf course, library and other City services as 
appropriate.

Admin 10/23 99%
All ideas for feedback cards have been 
submitted and are being reviewed.

5
Continue to enhance, improve, and promote City Beat and grow subscription base by 
10%.

CCO 04/24 100%

1 Develop and adopt formal policies pertaining to:
a Formal debt policy based on GFOA authoritative guidance. A&F 10/23 100%

BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - APRIL 2024

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
Focus on staff recruitment, retention, development, department collaborations, and safety programs to improve workplace culture and morale.

Improve and modernize our workplace including seeking accreditations for operational excellence, developing a performance and reward-based evaluation process, 

Develop annual communications and feedback systems to include a standard report to citizens, community survey, and employee survey.

Adopt governance best practices relating to debt, financial targets, multi-year plans, and a comprehensive Council handbook.

1 of 4

Agenda Item 6.g.i.



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - APRIL 2024

b
Formal policy requiring that utility rate studies be conducted at least every 5 years 
and requiring Council to utilize periodic rate studies to adopt multiyear rate plans. 

A&F 10/23 100%

c
Formal capital planning policy requiring that a 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
be prepared by Staff and adopted by the City Council concurrently with the budget 
every year. 

A&F 10/23 100%

2
Future budgets should include 5-year projections of revenue and expenditures for 
major operating funds to assist the Council and Staff in better planning for the 
future. 

A&F 07/25 35%
Will contact Crawford & Assoc.  If they are 
unable to provide service, then implementation 
may be delayed.

3
City Council will adopt a City Council Handbook that will help to guide current and 
future City Councils. City Manager will work with Mayor to schedule a Council 
workshop to discuss this item within one year of adoption of Strategic Plan. 

Admin 04/24 100%

1

The intent of the asset management program is to compile age, material, condition, 
and service life of the City’s infrastructure (facilities, airport, streets, storm drain, 
wastewater, water, signals, signs, etc.) into ESRI’s GIS software to aid in planning 
improvement priority and capital needs.

Eng

a
Staff will determine what items need to be tracked, what data exists, and what data 
needs to be collected

Eng 10/23 95% Pending budget approval.

b Select consultant to collect and populate data into ESRI. Eng
i Facilities, streets, storm drains, wastewater and water Eng 10/24 25%
ii Signs and signals Eng 10/25 50%

1 Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI). Eng
a Complete PCI update currently under contract. Eng 04/23 100%

b
Once complete, develop several PCI score scenarios (maintain existing, desired PCI in 
5 years and desired PCI in 10 years) with capital investment requirements – 6 
months.

Eng 06/23 100%

1
Update the city’s comprehensive plan and other long-range plans utilizing accepted 
best practices (i.e. transportation, storm drainage, utilities, etc.). 

Comm Dev

a Staff will develop an RFP to select a consultant. Comm Dev 06/23 100%

b Present recommendations to the Council Comm Dev 08/24 5%
Start date of project was delayed, so end date 
has been adjusted accordingly.

EFFECTIVE INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK
Develop Asset Management Program for infrastructure.

Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI).

ECONOMIC VITALITY
Reevaluate our development regulatory policies to ensure all rules, regulations, and processes align with best practices and reflect the character of our community.

2 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - APRIL 2024

2
Update zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances and codes which regulate private 
development and land use following the updated comprehensive land use plan. 

Comm Dev 06/25 0%

1
Identify economic development partners and assign City employee to act as 
economic development liaison. Liaison shall act as conduit between economic 
development partners, developer, and City departments. 

Admin 06/23 100%

2
Convene a meeting with all economic development partners to determine how best 
to support their efforts and to define the expectations for all parties.

Admin 12/23 100%

3 Ongoing coordination between liaison and economic development partners. Admin 100%

1 Identify community partners who employ and recruit young professionals. Admin 09/23 100%

2
Engage with community partners to learn how the City can attract young 
professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 20% Scheduling meeting with COP/P66 leadership

3
Examine ways to make the community more enticing for businesses and restaurants 
that attract young professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 0%

4
Work closely with BDA and Visit Bartlesville to promote their efforts and 
accomplishments 

Admin 01/24 20%

1 Coordinate a multi-cultural group to highlight the diverse cultures in our community. Library 01/24 100%

a Use this group to support/identify cultural needs that are unmet.
b Partner/support this group for an annual event.

2 Allocate city resources for support group (such as facilities, properties, venues, etc.) Library 01/25 0%

1
As part of the update to the City’s comprehensive and other plans identified in 
Economic Vitality, update the Parks Masterplan to ensure that lifestyle options and 
parks and recreation systems are meeting the needs of the public.

Comm Dev 08/24 20% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

2
Create a Trails/Multi-model plan that incorporates existing assets and plans such as 
bicycle plan.

CD/S&T 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

a Review, evaluate, and update the Bicycle Plan CD/S&T 08/24 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

Develop and implement strategies to retain and attract young professionals and families to Bartlesville.

COMMUNITY CHARACTER
Explore opportunities to embrace the unique cultures of our community.

Develop and maintain healthy lifestyle options as a segment of our parks, recreation and transportation systems.

Ensure and maintain clean, bright, vibrant community spaces.

Collaborate with economic development partners and experts to optimize development.

3 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - APRIL 2024

1
Address vandalism and criminal activities in our community spaces, including 
destruction or defacement of public restrooms, violations of park curfews, etc.

PW/PD

a
Improve security measures at public restrooms using automatic locks combined with 
motion and smoke detectors

Pub Works 04/24 95% 9 of 10 bathrooms installed

b Police to respond to all calls at public restrooms generated by new systems PD 04/24 100%

i
Offenders, especially repeat offenders, will be prosecuted for vandalism, arson, 
trespassing, etc.

PD 04/24 100%

2
Coordinate citizen volunteer efforts to supplement our maintenance efforts and to 
improve the appearance of our City. These could include periodic clean up days, 
adopt a mile programs, adopt a path programs, etc. 

CD/PW 07/23 100% KBB established.

a Staff to list and prioritize possible programs. CD/PW 01/24 0%
b Adopt formal policy for selected program(s). CD/PW 04/24 0%
c Advertise, promote, operate, and publicly report on the success of this program. CD/PW 10/24 0%

3 Establish Neighborhood Watch and Sentinel Program PD 10/23 100%
4 Finalize implementation of and launch Software 311 and City App Comm Dev 04/24 100%
5 Create a list of minimum maintenance intervals for our parks and rights-of-way. Pub Works 07/23 100%

1 Child Care: Admin

a Collaborate with local groups to help find solutions to the local child care shortage. Admin 04/24 70%

b
Help advocate for reform of child care regulations that act as barriers to new 
facilities.

Admin 70%

2 Housing: Comm Dev

a
Evaluate local housing supply and demand to determine gaps in local housing stock 
by price level.

Comm Dev 04/24 100%

3 Homelessness: PD

a
Collaborate with local groups seeking to reduce homelessness including “United 
Way” and “B the Light”.

Admin/CD 04/24 95%

b
Review existing laws and enforcement policies and retrain police officers to better 
handle crimes committed by the homeless.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

c
Utilize the mental health team data from PD to better understand our homeless 
population, how many homeless are in Bartlesville, and why they are here.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

Partner with community groups to discuss, evaluate and report on existing needs and potential solution that address: Child Care, Housing, Homelessness, and Others 
EMERGING ISSUES

4 of 4



                    1  Agenda Item   
May 1, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A public hearing to consider a request by Andrew Oleson to close a portion of a 20-foot-wide 
utility easement located on the north side of Lot 28, Block 37, Pennington Hills 5th Addition, 
Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma. 
 
Attachments: 

Ordinance 
Exhibit A 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
Applicant:   Andrew Oleson 
 
Requested Action: A public hearing to consider a request to close a portion of a 20-

foot-wide utility easement on the north side of Lot 28, Block 37, 
Pennington Hills 5th Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, 
Oklahoma said portion of right-of-way being more particularly 
described as follows: 

  
THE SOUTH 10 FEET OF THE NORTH 20 FEET OF LOT 28, 
BLOCK 37, PENNINGTON HILLS 5TH ADDITION, 
BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA 
  

SPECIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The applicant is requesting the closure so that they can construct a storage building in 
the back yard of the property.  They requested a utility locate and no utilities were 
marked in this portion of the yard and they would like to be able to use that part of the 
property more effectively. There is a 20’ wide utility in the rear of the adjacent lots to 
the north where overhead electric, communications, and sanitary sewer are located. 
 

1. City Staff: Staff has received no objections from Police, Fire, Planning, 
Public Works, Water Utilities or Engineering departments.  There is a sanitary 
sewer line on the lots the north with 20 feet of easement provided on the lot 
included in this application.  Since 10 feet of that easement would remain, the 
Engineering and Water Utilities Departments do not have objections to the 
request. 

 
2. Utility Companies: Staff has received no objections from ONG, AT&T or 

Sparklight.  ONG is located in the front and the communications utilities are on 

 7.



PSO poles on the lot to the north.  PSO has stated that for adequate and safe 
access to their facilities located in the 20’ easement north of and adjacent to this 
lot, they need to maintain access to all existing easements. They will not support 
closing any portion of the 20’ easement. 

  
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Staff recommends holding the public hearing and denial of the request to vacate the south 10 feet 
of the 20-foot utility easement based upon input received from PSO.  An ordinance has been 
included with this recommendation in the event Council chooses to approve the request. A public 
hearing notice has been placed in the Examiner Enterprise. 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

An Ordinance to close a portion of the 20-foot-wide utility easement, located on the north side 
of Lot 28, Block 37, Pennington Hills, Fifth Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, 
Oklahoma. 

 
 

WHEREAS, heretofore the City Council of the City of Bartlesville received a request for the closing of 
a portion of a utility easement hereinafter described; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council duly set said matter for public hearing and gave proper notice thereof and said 
matter was duly heard before the Council in an open meeting on May 6, 2024, where all viewpoints 
were considered; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council, after consideration, determined it necessary, expedient and desirable that the 
portion of the utility easement hereinafter to be closed. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 
 
The following described utility easement, described to wit: 
 
A UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED IN LOT 28, BLOCK 37, PENNINGTON HILLS FIFTH 
ADDITION, BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 
 
THE SOUTH 10 FEET OF THE NORTH 20 FEET OF LOT 28, BLOCK 37, PENNINGTON 
HILLS, FIFTH ADDITION, BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA. 
     
Also, as shown as Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance be and the same is hereby 
closed. 
 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma this 
6th day of May, 2024. 

 
 
  
Dale Copeland, Mayor 

 
 
    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 
(SEAL) 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

 



                    1  Agenda Item   
May 1, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A public hearing to consider a request by Arcadian Housing to close a portion of nineteen (19) 
different 7.5-foot-wide utility easements located in Oak Wood Addition, Bartlesville, 
Washington County, Oklahoma. 
 
Attachments: 

Ordinance 
Exhibit A 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
Applicant:   Arcadian Housing 
 
Requested Action: A public hearing to consider a request to close 2.5’ of each of the 7.5’ Utility 

Easement, located in Block 2, Lots 8, 20 & 21; Block 3, Lots 10, 11, 18 & 19; 
Block 4, Lots 6, 7, 10 & 11; Block 6, Lots 2, 3, 10, 11, 16 & 17; and Block 7, 
Lots 21 & 22, Oak Wood Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, 
Oklahoma. 

  
UTILITY EASEMENTS LOCATED IN BLOCK 2, LOTS 8, 20 
& 21; BLOCK 3, LOTS 10, 11, 18 & 19; BLOCK 4, LOTS 6, 7, 
10 & 11; BLOCK 6, LOTS 2, 3, 10, 11, 16 & 17; AND BLOCK 
7, LOTS 21 & 22, OAK WOOD ADDITION, (LOCATED IN 
OAK PARK VILLAGE) BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON 
COUNTY, OKLAHOMA; SAID CLOSURE REDUCING EACH 
7.5’ EASEMENT TO 5’. BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 

 
THE EAST 2.5 FEET OF THE WEST 7.5 FEET OF LOTS 8 AND 
21, BLOCK 2; THE WEST 2.5 FEET OF THE EAST 7.5 FEET 
OF LOT 20, BLOCK 2; THE EAST 2.5 FEET OF THE WEST 7.5 
FEET OF LOTS 10 AND 19, BLOCK 3; THE WEST 2.5 FEET 
OF THE EAST 7.5 FEET OF LOTS 11 AND 18, BLOCK 3; THE 
EAST 2.5 FEET OF THE WEST 7.5 FEET OF LOTS 6 AND 10, 
BLOCK 4; THE WEST 2.5 FEET OF THE EAST 7.5 FEET OF 
LOTS 7 AND 11, BLOCK 4; THE SOUTH 2.5 FEET OF THE 
NORTH 7.5 FEET OF LOTS 2, 10 AND 16, BLOCK 6; THE 
NORTH 2.5 FEET OF THE SOUTH 7.5 FEET OF LOTS 3, 11 
AND 17, BLOCK 6; THE SOUTH 2.5 FEET OF THE NORTH 7.5 
FEET OF LOT 22, BLOCK 7; THE NORTH 2.5 FEET OF THE 

8.



SOUTH 7.5 FEET OF LOT 21, BLOCK 7;  ALL LOTS AND 
BLOCKS BEING LOCATED WITHIN THE OAKWOOD 
ADDITION, BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON COUNTY, 
OKLAHOMA. 

 
The applicant has been approved to redevelop the majority of the lots located within the 
Oakwood Addition subdivision.  This subdivision was never fully developed, with 
approximately 90% of the lots in this subdivision being left vacant.  Water, sewer, storm 
sewer and roads were constructed at the time, but the streets were not built to City of 
Bartlesville standards and were not accepted.  Unused portions of water and sewer lines 
are so old and unused, that improvements to those systems have been required of the 
developer along with reconstruction of the streets to bring them into compliance with 
City standards.  As part of this process, the developer, Arcadian Housing, has proposed 
to construct residential houses that are somewhat larger than what was originally 
planned for this subdivision.  They have requested reducing some of the existing utility 
easements from 7.5’ wide to 5’ wide to make room for their proposed houses. 
 

1. City Staff: Staff has received no objections from Police, Fire, Planning, 
Public Works, Water Utilities or Engineering departments.  There are no city-
owned facilities located within the easement and no future plans for public utility 
extensions in the easements. 

 
2. Utility Companies: Staff has received no objections from ONG, PSO, AT&T 

or Sparklight as all but AT&T do not have facilities located within the easements 
and therefore do not object.  AT&T does have some older, unused copper lines 
within the easements and they have placed a work order to have them abandoned 
and therefore do not have any issues with the request. 

  
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Staff recommends holding the public hearing and authorizing the mayor to execute the attached 
ordinance vacating the portions of utility easements as presented and defined in the ordinance.  
A public hearing notice has been placed in the Examiner Enterprise. 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

An Ordinance to close 2.5’ of each of the 7.5’ Utility Easement, located in Block 2, Lots 8, 20 
& 21; Block 3, Lots 10, 11, 18 & 19; Block 4, Lots 6, 7, 10 & 11; Block 6, Lots 2, 3, 10, 11, 16 
& 17; and Block 7, Lots 21 & 22, Oak Wood Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, 
Oklahoma. 

 
 

WHEREAS, heretofore the City Council of the City of Bartlesville received a request for the closing of 
a portion of multiple utility easements hereinafter described; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council duly set said matter for public hearing and gave proper notice thereof and said 
matter was duly heard before the Council in an open meeting on May 6, 2024, where all viewpoints 
were considered; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council, after consideration, determined it necessary, expedient and desirable that the 
portions of the utility easements hereinafter to be closed. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 
 
The following described portions of utility easements, described to wit: 
 
UTILITY EASEMENTS LOCATED IN BLOCK 2, LOTS 8, 20 & 21; BLOCK 3, LOTS 10, 11, 18 & 19; 
BLOCK 4, LOTS 6, 7, 10 & 11; BLOCK 6, LOTS 2, 3, 10, 11, 16 & 17; AND BLOCK 7, LOTS 21 & 22, 
OAK WOOD ADDITION, (LOCATED IN OAK PARK VILLAGE) BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON 
COUNTY, OKLAHOMA; SAID CLOSURE REDUCING EACH 7.5’ EASEMENT TO 5’. BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 
 
THE EAST 2.5 FEET OF THE WEST 7.5 FEET OF LOTS 8 AND 21, BLOCK 2; THE WEST 2.5 FEET 
OF THE EAST 7.5 FEET OF LOT 20, BLOCK 2; THE EAST 2.5 FEET OF THE WEST 7.5 FEET OF 
LOTS 10 AND 19, BLOCK 3; THE WEST 2.5 FEET OF THE EAST 7.5 FEET OF LOTS 11 AND 18, 
BLOCK 3; THE EAST 2.5 FEET OF THE WEST 7.5 FEET OF LOTS 6 AND 10, BLOCK 4; THE WEST 
2.5 FEET OF THE EAST 7.5 FEET OF LOTS 7 AND 11, BLOCK 4; THE SOUTH 2.5 FEET OF THE 
NORTH 7.5 FEET OF LOTS 2, 10 AND 16, BLOCK 6; THE NORTH 2.5 FEET OF THE SOUTH 7.5 
FEET OF LOTS 3, 11 AND 17, BLOCK 6; THE SOUTH 2.5 FEET OF THE NORTH 7.5 FEET OF LOT 
22, BLOCK 7; THE NORTH 2.5 FEET OF THE SOUTH 7.5 FEET OF LOT 21, BLOCK 7;  ALL LOTS 
AND BLOCKS BEING LOCATED WITHIN THE OAKWOOD ADDITION, BARTLESVILLE, 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA. 
     
Also, as shown as Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance be and the same is hereby 
closed. 
 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma this 
6th day of May, 2024. 

 
  
Dale Copeland, Mayor 

 
    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 
(SEAL) 



 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 



Agenda Item ___ 
January 26, 2024 

Prepared by Jason Muninger. CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 
 
Public hearing and possible action on a Resolution adopting the City of Bartlesville 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 and establishing budget amendment authority, 
authorizing the cancellation of encumbrances which are not due and payable as of June 
30, 2024, and re-appropriating amounts of cancelled encumbrances to the same fund 
and department for Fiscal Years 2024-2025. 
 
Attachments: 

 
Resolution adopting the budget for FY 2024-25 as discussed at the budget workshop 
 
Resolution adopting the budget for FY 2024-25 retaining 2 prior funded positions 
 
Budget adoption and public hearing Power Point 

 
  

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
 
There are two resolutions drafted, one of them contains the data from the workshop 
meeting, while the other contains data funding 2 Patrol positions that were exchanged 
for dispatch positions. As presented at the workshop meeting the General Fund had a 
contingency balance of $159K.  The cost of these two additional positions will be 
$149K, so there was budgetary capacity to absorb the additional cost. 
  

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
Budgetary impact is an additional $149,000 for resolution B as opposed to Resolution A. 
 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Staff recommends either of the two resolutions adopting the 2024-25 Operating Budget 
at councils will.  

 
 

 9.



CITY BUDGET
PUBLIC HEARING

FY 2024-25

Agenda Item 9.



BUDGET PREPARATION SCHEDULE
 

TARGET DATE 
 

 

ACTIVITY 
 

 

0BMarch 8 
 

 

1BDistribute Budget Preparation Packets to Directors 

 

March 8 

 

Directors verify personnel and line estimates 
 

March 8 – March 18 
 

 

Directors prepare budget requests and submit to Finance 

Director 
 

March 25 – 27 
 

 

Directors Budget Meetings with City Manager  

 

April 10 
 

 

Submit Proposed Budget to City Council 

 

April 15 
 

 

City Council Consideration of Budget 

 

April 23 
 

 

Publish Budget Summary and Notice of Public Hearing (actual 

publish date will be Sunday, April 28) 
 

May 6 
 

 

Public Hearing on Budget and Budget Adoption (Legal 

Deadline is June 24) 
 

June 30 
 

 

Budget published and filed with State Auditor and City Clerk 

 

2BJuly 1 
 

 

3BNew fiscal year begins 

 



CHANGES SINCE WORKSHOP

Retaining 2 Patrol positions 148,914$     

Proshop roof 50,000         

Total allocation 198,914$     



BUDGET RECAP
Revenue:

◦ Sales tax
◦ Budget conservatively estimated based on 2024 Actuals with a 1.5% reduction applied

◦ This equates to a $450K reduction from actuals collected in FY 2024 

◦ ARPA
◦ The City will utilize $500 thousand transfer as initially outlined in the ARPA plan

◦ Use Tax
◦ The City has chosen the conservative budget amount of $4.5 million which is  5% reduction applied

◦ This equates to a $250K reduction from actuals collected in 2024

◦ Utility rates effective July 1, 2024
◦ Continuing the rate study effective for FY 2025 

◦ Estimated 5.2% rate increase for average residential customer in the third year of implementation

Personnel:
◦ A 6% COLA to be given to all employees

◦ A 2.5% Merit given to all eligible employees

◦ Addition of a net 3 FTE’s possibly 5 net FTE’s dependent on councils Resolution approval



BUDGET ADOPTION 
RESOLUTION

Section 1. – adopts the budgeted amounts included in the document
◦ Sets the legal level of control at department within a fund

Section 2. – sets budget amendment authority for the City Manager during the 
year

◦ City Manager can adjust budgets within a fund (cannot alter reserves)

Section 3. – sets budget amendment authority for the City Council during the 
year

◦ City Council can increase budgets, transfers between funds, and alter reserves

Section 4. – re-appropriates all encumbrances that remain open at fiscal year 
end

◦ Re-encumbers all open purchase orders and increases budget to match the offset 
expense 



PUBLIC HEARING
Public hearing required for budgets adopted in accordance with the 
“Municipal Budget Act”

◦ BMA is formed under Title 60 as a Public Trust and does not require a public 
hearing

◦ City of Bartlesville’s budget is adopted in accordance with the “Municipal 
Budget Act” and a public hearing is required



RESOLUTION ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 AND 
ESTABLISHING BUDGET AMENDMENT AUTHORITY, AUTHORIZING THE 
CANCELLATION OF ENCUMBRANCES WHICH ARE NOT DUE AND 
PAYABLE AS OF JUNE 30, 2024, AND REAPPRORIATING AMOUNTS OF 
CANCELLED ENCUMBRANCES TO THE SAME FUND AND DEPARTMENT 
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2024-25. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma has adopted the provisions of the 
Oklahoma Municipal Budget Act (the Act) in 11 O.S. Sections 17-201 through 17-216; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared a budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2025 consistent with the Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Act in Section 17-215 provides for the chief executive officer of the City, 
or designee, as authorized by the governing body, to transfer any unexpended and 
unencumbered appropriation from one department to another within the same fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, the budget has been formally presented to the Bartlesville City Council at 
least thirty (30) days prior to the start of the fiscal year in compliance with Section 17-205; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Bartlesville City Council has conducted a Public Hearing at least 15 days 
prior to the start of the fiscal year, and published notice of the Public Hearing in compliance 
with Section 17-208 of the Act; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA; that 
 
Section 1. The City Council of the City Bartlesville does hereby adopt the FY 2024-25 

Budget on the 6th day of May 2024 with total resources available in the amount 
of $158,795,604 and total fund/departmental expenditure and reserve 
appropriations in the amount of $142,697,173. Legal appropriations 
(spending/encumbering limits) are hereby established as follows: 

 
 

Resolution A Agenda Item 9.



FUND & DEPARTMENT APPROPRIATION 
AMOUNT

General Fund:

City Council 22,660$                  
Administration 1,456,800               
Accounting and Finance 2,041,416               
Legal 266,829                  
Building & Neighborhood Service 1,048,315               
Building Maintenance 549,356                  
General Services 959,650                  
Cemetery 16,860                    
Community Development 687,965                  
Technical Services 1,491,757               
Engineering 1,009,762               
Fleet Maintenance 543,183                  
Fire 8,241,858               
Police 9,982,557               
Street 2,180,609               
Library 1,814,914               
History Museum 248,743                  
Park and Recreation 1,756,898               
Transfers Out 4,787,466               
Reserves 1,374,200               

Total General Fund 40,481,798$           

Economic Development Fund:

Economic Development 5,708,341$             

E-911 Fund:

Emergency Dispatch 1,487,474$             
Reserves 27,620                    

Total E-911 Fund 1,515,094$             

Special Library Fund:

Library 202,000$                

Special Museum Fund:

Museum 25,100$                  

Municipal Airport Fund:

Airport 7,598$                    

Harshfield Library Donation Fund:

Library 375,860$                

GENERAL FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

 

Restricted Revenue Fund:

General Services 87,276$                  
Cemetery 27,892                    
Community Development 3,168                      
Fire 1,284                      
Police 77,655                    
Park and Recreation 2,676                      
Swimming Pools 93,980                    
Stadium 12,331                    

Total Restricted Donations 306,262$                

Golf Course Memorial Fund:

Municipal Golf Course 21,528$                  

JAG Fund:

Police 14,804$                  

CDBG-COVID Fund:

General Services 485,000$                

ARPA Fund:

Transfer to General 500,000$                

Neighborhood Park Fund:

Park and Recreation 62,723$                  

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund:

Cemetery 15,009$                  

Total Special Revenue Funds 9,239,319$             

Debt Service Fund:

Judgments 70,000$                  
2014B Combined Purpose Bonds 606,800                  
2015 Combined Purpose Bonds 227,020                  
2018A Combined Purpose Bonds 1,274,450               
2018C Combined Purpose Bonds 319,125                  
2019A Combined Purpose Bonds 245,100                  
2019B Combined Purpose Bonds 105,500                  
2021A Combined Purpose Bonds 242,000                  
2022 Combined Purpose Bonds 1,470,700               
2023 Combined Purpose Bonds 380,075                  

Total Debt Service Fund 4,940,770$             

DEBT SERVICE FUND

 
  



 
 

2021A G.O Bond Fund

Park and Recreation 510,000$              
Unallocated 16,494                  

Total 2021A G.O. Bond 526,494$              

2022 G.O Bond Fund

Street 2,360,000$            
Park 810,750                
Unallocated 53,234                  

Total 2022 G.O. Bond 3,223,984$            

2023 G.O Bond Fund

General Services 300,000$              
Tech Services 388,000                
Fire 246,900                
Street 4,175,745             
Library -                           
Park 501,500                
Golf 700,000                
Unallocated 129,239                

Total 2023 G.O. Bond 6,441,384$            

Total Capital Projects Funds 21,238,609$          

Wastewater Operating Fund:

Wastewater Treatment Plant 3,177,550$            
Wastewater Maintenance 993,617                
Transfers Out 1,836,183             
Reserves 97,138                  

Total Wastewater Operating 6,104,488$            

Water Operating Fund:

Water Plant 4,094,740$            
Water Administration 465,954                
Water Distribution 2,373,912             
Transfers Out 2,878,743             
Reserves 368,397                

Total Water Operating 10,181,746$          

Sanitation Operating Fund:

Sanitation 3,825,601$            
Transfers Out 2,684,272             
Reserves 140,718                

Total Sanitation Operating 6,650,591$            

Municipal Golf Course Fund:

Golf Course 609,957$              
Pro Shop 655,700                
Reserves 30,939                  

Total Municipal Golf Course 1,296,596$            

Sooner Pool Fund:

Sooner Pool 78,002$                
Reserves 1,560                    

Total Sooner Pool 79,562$                

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

CIP - Sales Tax Fund:

Building and Neighborhood Services 100,000$              
General Services 498,638                
Tech Services 259,500                
Engineering 100,000                
Police 682,360                
Storm Sewer 249,500                
Street 4,385,000             
Park and Recreation 2,311,906             
Municipal Golf Course 5,000                    
Unallocated 796,993                

Total CIP - Sales Tax 9,388,897$            

CIP - Wastewater Fund:

Wastewater Maintenance 43,000$                
Unallocated 44,205                  

Total CIP - Wastewater 87,205$                

CIP - Wastewater Regulatory Fund:

Transfers Out -$                         
Unallocated 154,032                

Total CIP - Wastewater Regulatory 584,032$              

CIP - City Hall Fund:

General Services 120,000$              
Unallocated 107,358                

Total CIP - City Hall 227,358$              

CIP - Storm Sewer Fund:

Storm Sewer 48,130$                

2014B G.O Bond Fund

Unallocated 3,885$                  

2018B G.O Bond Fund

Storm Swere 31,386$                

2019A G.O Bond Fund

Park and Recreation 326,564$              

2019B G.O Bond Fund

Storm Sewer 300,000$              
Unallocated 41,460                  

Total 2019B G.O. Bond 341,460$              

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS



 
 
 
Frontier Pool Fund:

Frontier Pool 92,382$                
Reserves 1,848                    

Total Frontier Pool 94,230$                

Municipal Airport Fund:

Airport 706,086$              
Reserves 41,528                  

Total Municipal Airport 747,614$              

Total Enterprise Funds 25,154,827$          

Workers' Compensation Fund:

Work Comp Claims 400,000$              
Administration 30,000                  

Total Workers' Compensation 430,000$              

Health Insurance Fund:

Medical Claims 4,618,050$            
Administration Fees 913,158                

Total Health Insurance 5,531,208$            

Auto Collision Fund:

Auto Collision Claims 443,559$              

Stabilization Reserve Fund:

General Fund Reserve 9,867,042$            
Wastewater Fund Reserve 1,311,390             
Water Fund Reserve 2,189,832             
Sanitation Fund Reserve 1,407,304             

Total Stabilization Reserve 14,775,568$          

Capital Reserve Fund:

General 3,875,000$            
Wastewater 5,190,000             
Water 8,500,000             
Sanitation 2,888,000             

Total Capital Reserve 20,453,000$          

Total Internal Service Funds 41,633,335$          

Mausoleum Trust Fund:

Mausoleum 8,515$                  

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS



Section 2. The City Council does hereby authorize the City Manager to transfer any 
unexpended and unencumbered appropriations, at any time throughout FY 
2024-25, from one department to another within a fund, without further 
approval by the City Council. This however should not be construed as 
granting authority to the City Manager to transfer appropriations from a 
reserve without Council approval. 

 
Section 3. All supplemental appropriations or decreases in the total appropriations of a 

fund or any transfer of appropriations from a reserve shall be adopted at a 
meeting of the City Council. 

 
Section 4. All encumbrances of any fund, exclusive of amounts due and payable as of 

June 30, 2024 are hereby cancelled and the amounts of said encumbrances are 
authorized to be added to the appropriations contained in the FY 2024-25 
budget and the same amounts re-encumbered to be paid upon receipt of goods 
or services during FY 2024-25. 

 
 
APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 6th DAY OF MAY, 2024. 
 
 

 
 

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 

City Clerk 
 



RESOLUTION ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 AND 
ESTABLISHING BUDGET AMENDMENT AUTHORITY, AUTHORIZING THE 
CANCELLATION OF ENCUMBRANCES WHICH ARE NOT DUE AND 
PAYABLE AS OF JUNE 30, 2024, AND REAPPRORIATING AMOUNTS OF 
CANCELLED ENCUMBRANCES TO THE SAME FUND AND DEPARTMENT 
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2024-25. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma has adopted the provisions of the 
Oklahoma Municipal Budget Act (the Act) in 11 O.S. Sections 17-201 through 17-216; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared a budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2025 consistent with the Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Act in Section 17-215 provides for the chief executive officer of the City, 
or designee, as authorized by the governing body, to transfer any unexpended and 
unencumbered appropriation from one department to another within the same fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, the budget has been formally presented to the Bartlesville City Council at 
least thirty (30) days prior to the start of the fiscal year in compliance with Section 17-205; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Bartlesville City Council has conducted a Public Hearing at least 15 days 
prior to the start of the fiscal year, and published notice of the Public Hearing in compliance 
with Section 17-208 of the Act; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA; that 
 
Section 1. The City Council of the City Bartlesville does hereby adopt the FY 2024-25 

Budget on the 6th day of May 2024 with total resources available in the amount 
of $158,795,604 and total fund/departmental expenditure and reserve 
appropriations in the amount of $142,846,087. Legal appropriations 
(spending/encumbering limits) are hereby established as follows: 

 
 

Resolution B
Agenda Item 9.



 

Restricted Revenue Fund:

General Services 87,276$                
Cemetery 27,892                  
Community Development 3,168                    
Fire 1,284                    
Police 77,655                  
Park and Recreation 2,676                    
Swimming Pools 93,980                  
Stadium 12,331                  

Total Restricted Donations 306,262$              

Golf Course Memorial Fund:

Municipal Golf Course 21,528$                

JAG Fund:

Police 14,804$                

CDBG-COVID Fund:

General Services 485,000$              

ARPA Fund:

Transfer to General 500,000$              

Neighborhood Park Fund:

Park and Recreation 62,723$                

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund:

Cemetery 15,009$                

Total Special Revenue Funds 9,239,319$            

Debt Service Fund:

Judgments 70,000$                
2014B Combined Purpose Bonds 606,800                
2015 Combined Purpose Bonds 227,020                
2018A Combined Purpose Bonds 1,274,450             
2018C Combined Purpose Bonds 319,125                
2019A Combined Purpose Bonds 245,100                
2019B Combined Purpose Bonds 105,500                
2021A Combined Purpose Bonds 242,000                
2022 Combined Purpose Bonds 1,470,700             
2023 Combined Purpose Bonds 380,075                

Total Debt Service Fund 4,940,770$            

DEBT SERVICE FUND

 
  

FUND & DEPARTMENT APPROPRIATION 
AMOUNT

General Fund:

City Council 22,660$                
Administration 1,456,800             
Accounting and Finance 2,041,416             
Legal 266,829                
Building & Neighborhood Service 1,048,315             
Building Maintenance 549,356                
General Services 959,650                
Cemetery 16,860                  
Community Development 687,965                
Technical Services 1,491,757             
Engineering 1,009,762             
Fleet Maintenance 543,183                
Fire 8,241,858             
Police 10,131,471            
Street 2,180,609             
Library 1,814,914             
History Museum 248,743                
Park and Recreation 1,756,898             
Transfers Out 4,787,466             
Reserves 1,374,200             

Total General Fund 40,630,712$          

Economic Development Fund:

Economic Development 5,708,341$            

E-911 Fund:

Emergency Dispatch 1,487,474$            
Reserves 27,620                  

Total E-911 Fund 1,515,094$            

Special Library Fund:

Library 202,000$              

Special Museum Fund:

Museum 25,100$                

Municipal Airport Fund:

Airport 7,598$                  

Harshfield Library Donation Fund:

Library 375,860$              

GENERAL FUND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS



 
 

2021A G.O Bond Fund

Park and Recreation 510,000$              
Unallocated 16,494                  

Total 2021A G.O. Bond 526,494$              

2022 G.O Bond Fund

Street 2,360,000$            
Park 810,750                
Unallocated 53,234                  

Total 2022 G.O. Bond 3,223,984$            

2023 G.O Bond Fund

General Services 300,000$              
Tech Services 388,000                
Fire 246,900                
Street 4,175,745             
Library -                           
Park 501,500                
Golf 700,000                
Unallocated 129,239                

Total 2023 G.O. Bond 6,441,384$            

Total Capital Projects Funds 21,238,609$          

Wastewater Operating Fund:

Wastewater Treatment Plant 3,177,550$            
Wastewater Maintenance 993,617                
Transfers Out 1,836,183             
Reserves 97,138                  

Total Wastewater Operating 6,104,488$            

Water Operating Fund:

Water Plant 4,094,740$            
Water Administration 465,954                
Water Distribution 2,373,912             
Transfers Out 2,878,743             
Reserves 368,397                

Total Water Operating 10,181,746$          

Sanitation Operating Fund:

Sanitation 3,825,601$            
Transfers Out 2,684,272             
Reserves 140,718                

Total Sanitation Operating 6,650,591$            

Municipal Golf Course Fund:

Golf Course 609,957$              
Pro Shop 655,700                
Reserves 30,939                  

Total Municipal Golf Course 1,296,596$            

Sooner Pool Fund:

Sooner Pool 78,002$                
Reserves 1,560                    

Total Sooner Pool 79,562$                

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

CIP - Sales Tax Fund:

Building and Neighborhood Services 100,000$              
General Services 498,638                
Tech Services 259,500                
Engineering 100,000                
Police 682,360                
Storm Sewer 249,500                
Street 4,385,000             
Park and Recreation 2,311,906             
Municipal Golf Course 5,000                    
Unallocated 796,993                

Total CIP - Sales Tax 9,388,897$            

CIP - Wastewater Fund:

Wastewater Maintenance 43,000$                
Unallocated 44,205                  

Total CIP - Wastewater 87,205$                

CIP - Wastewater Regulatory Fund:

Transfers Out -$                         
Unallocated 154,032                

Total CIP - Wastewater Regulatory 584,032$              

CIP - City Hall Fund:

General Services 120,000$              
Unallocated 107,358                

Total CIP - City Hall 227,358$              

CIP - Storm Sewer Fund:

Storm Sewer 48,130$                

2014B G.O Bond Fund

Unallocated 3,885$                  

2018B G.O Bond Fund

Storm Swere 31,386$                

2019A G.O Bond Fund

Park and Recreation 326,564$              

2019B G.O Bond Fund

Storm Sewer 300,000$              
Unallocated 41,460                  

Total 2019B G.O. Bond 341,460$              

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS



 
 
 
Frontier Pool Fund:

Frontier Pool 92,382$                
Reserves 1,848                    

Total Frontier Pool 94,230$                

Municipal Airport Fund:

Airport 706,086$              
Reserves 41,528                  

Total Municipal Airport 747,614$              

Total Enterprise Funds 25,154,827$          

Workers' Compensation Fund:

Work Comp Claims 400,000$              
Administration 30,000                  

Total Workers' Compensation 430,000$              

Health Insurance Fund:

Medical Claims 4,618,050$            
Administration Fees 913,158                

Total Health Insurance 5,531,208$            

Auto Collision Fund:

Auto Collision Claims 443,559$              

Stabilization Reserve Fund:

General Fund Reserve 9,867,042$            
Wastewater Fund Reserve 1,311,390             
Water Fund Reserve 2,189,832             
Sanitation Fund Reserve 1,407,304             

Total Stabilization Reserve 14,775,568$          

Capital Reserve Fund:

General 3,875,000$            
Wastewater 5,190,000             
Water 8,500,000             
Sanitation 2,888,000             

Total Capital Reserve 20,453,000$          

Total Internal Service Funds 41,633,335$          

Mausoleum Trust Fund:

Mausoleum 8,515$                  

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS



Section 2. The City Council does hereby authorize the City Manager to transfer any 
unexpended and unencumbered appropriations, at any time throughout FY 
2024-25, from one department to another within a fund, without further 
approval by the City Council. This however should not be construed as 
granting authority to the City Manager to transfer appropriations from a 
reserve without Council approval. 

 
Section 3. All supplemental appropriations or decreases in the total appropriations of a 

fund or any transfer of appropriations from a reserve shall be adopted at a 
meeting of the City Council. 

 
Section 4. All encumbrances of any fund, exclusive of amounts due and payable as of 

June 30, 2024 are hereby cancelled and the amounts of said encumbrances are 
authorized to be added to the appropriations contained in the FY 2024-25 
budget and the same amounts re-encumbered to be paid upon receipt of goods 
or services during FY 2024-25. 

 
 
APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 6th DAY OF MAY, 2024. 
 
 

 
 

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 

City Clerk 
 



Agenda Item  
May 1, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Discuss and take possible action on the Capital Improvements Program (CIP) Budget for FY
2024-2025

Attachments:
Reference Draft FY 24-25 Capital Budget Document 
Attached - Exhibits A through F  

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

In August of 2020, the citizens of Bartlesville voted to extend a one-half cent sales tax to
finance capital improvements for a five year period.  The authorizing ordinance stated that this
sales tax is to be used for the making of capital improvements, to include, but not limited to
“roads and streets, drainage improvements, water improvements, sewer improvements,
machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, rights-of-way, all real property, all
construction or reconstruction of buildings, appurtenances and improvements to real property
and other costs and expenses related thereto.”  A specific list of improvements which is to be
financed from the proceeds of this tax, to the extent funds are available is attached hereto as
Exhibit A.  Projects shown in green were advertised for the election and make up 70% of the
anticipated revenue generated through this sales tax.  While the other projects, which were
approved by Council, make up the remaining 30% of the funds.

The accounting staff has identified in the FY 2024-2025 Operating Budget for the Capital
Improvement Project (CIP) Sales Tax Fund a $4,713,853 budget for new projects.  Carry over
projects totaling $4,675,044 include the committed capital funding for previous fiscal year
projects that have not yet been completed.  Staff has compiled a list of proposed FY 2024-2025
½ cent sales tax capital improvement projects (CIP) totaling $3,966,860 for Council
consideration.  CIP carry over and proposed projects are shown in Exhibit B.  Highlighted
projects are priority (70%) projects.  These projects have been assembled from the list of voter
approved projects as shown in the original 2020 ½ cent sales tax CIP included as Exhibit A.

In addition to allocating funds from the ½ cent sales tax revenue source, proposed carry over
projects are summarized for the Wastewater Fund, City Hall Fund, and Storm Sewer Fund, as
well as the 2019A, 2019B, 2021A, 2022 and 2023 General Obligation Bond funds which are
shown in Exhibit C.  Staff is recommending proposed projects for the Wastewater Fund,
Wastewater Regulatory Fund and City Hall Fund, as well as the 2018B General Obligation
Bond Fund, shown in Exhibit D.  Finally, staff is also recommending carry over and proposed
projects for the Capital Reserve Fund which are shown in Exhibits E and F, respectively.

Changes since the workshop meeting on April 15th, 2024 are minimal.  One project to replace
the roof on the north end of the golf course club house was added moved from FY 25-26 of the

 10.



CIP schedule and added as a new project for FY 24-25.  The original planned budget for that 
project was $30,000.  We have proposed $50,000 for this project based upon quotes staff has 
already received for this work.  This decreased the unallocated portion of the CIP budget.  
These changes have been reflected and highlighted in Exhibit A and Exhibit B. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff requests Council consideration of and possible action on the proposed FY 2024-2025 
Capital Improvement Budget at its regular meeting on May 6th. 



 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 



 Description 
 Project 
Amount  Category  FY 2021-2022  FY 2022-2023  FY 2023-2024  FY 2024-2025  FY 2025-2026  TOTAL 

 ESTIMATED SALES TAX COLLECTION  $     2,743,000.00  $     2,743,000.00  $     2,743,000.00  $     2,743,000.00  $     2,743,000.00  $              13,715,000.00 
 BUDGETED SALES TAX COLLECTION  $     2,910,224.00  $     3,095,683.00  $     3,330,030.00  $     3,330,030.00  $              12,665,967.00 
 DIFFERENCE BETWEEN ESTIMATED AND BUDGETED  $        167,224.00  $        352,683.00  $        587,030.00  $        587,030.00  $                1,693,967.00 
 OVERALL TOTAL BY YEAR  $     2,742,860.00  $     2,735,760.00  $     2,340,360.00  $     2,920,360.00  $     2,712,460.00  $              13,451,800.00 
 EQUIPMENT 
General Fund Vehicle Replacement - $285k/yr 1,425,000        EQUIPMENT 285,000                277,800                285,000                285,000                285,000                
Police Emergency Vehicle Replacement (8/yr) 1,450,000        EQUIPMENT 290,000                290,000                Funded FY 22-23 290,000                290,000                
Police Emergency Vehicle Equipment/Labor (8/yr) 580,000           EQUIPMENT 116,000                116,000                Funded FY 22-23 116,000                116,000                
Tractor (2) 132,000           EQUIPMENT Funded FY 23-24
Body Worn Cameras (10/yr) 100,000           EQUIPMENT 20,000                   20,000                   20,000                   20,000                   20,000                   
Taser Lease Purchase (55/yr) 85,300             EQUIPMENT 17,060                   17,060                   20,060                   20,060                   17,060                   
Zero Turn Mowers (5) 50,000             EQUIPMENT 30,000                   20,000                   
Finish Mower (2) 44,000             EQUIPMENT Funded FY 23-24
Trim & Surround Mower 40,100             EQUIPMENT 45,974                   
T-Mower 32,700             EQUIPMENT 32,700                   
Deck Mower 31,100             EQUIPMENT 31,100                   
Greens Mower 28,700             EQUIPMENT 28,700                   
Heavy Duty Utility Vehicle 28,100             EQUIPMENT 28,100                   
Rough Mower Tractor 25,700             EQUIPMENT 25,700                   
24 Hour Dispatch Chairs (3/yr) 24,000             EQUIPMENT 4,800                     4,800                     4,800                     4,800                     4,800                     
Brush Hog 22,000             EQUIPMENT 22,000                   
Lightweight Utility Carts (2) 20,500             EQUIPMENT 20,500                   
Top Dresser 15,500             EQUIPMENT 16,126                   -                             
Bunker Rake 15,500             EQUIPMENT 15,500                   
Z411KW-3-48 (Kubota Zero Turn Mower) FY 20-21 Capital Reserve 6,500               EQUIPMENT FUNDED 675 -                             
DR Pro 26 14.5 HP Brush Mower 3,000               EQUIPMENT 3,000                     
BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES
Annual IT Equipment Replacement (PC's, monitors, etc.) 300,000           BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 58,000                   65,000                   65,000                   57,000                   55,000                   
Virtual Desktop Server Refresh (7) 160,000           BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 160,000                
City Hall Cooling Tower Replacement 126,500           BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 126,500                
Miscellaneous Building Improvements ($25k/yr) 125,000           BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 25,000                   25,000                   25,000                   25,000                   25,000                   
City-Wide Microsoft Office Upgrades 82,500             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 82,500                   
City Hall Roof Repair 70,500             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 70,500                   
Sharepoint Server 60,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 60,000                   
Secondary Site Server Relocation/Refresh 57,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 57,000                   
Upgrage City Servers (8) 45,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 45,000                   
City Hall Carpet Replacement 39,200             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 39,200                   
Exchange Server License and User License Upgrade (370) 35,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 35,000                   
Core Phone System Upgrade 35,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 35,000                   
Library Server Replacement (2) 30,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 30,000                   
Operations Server Room Upgrade 30,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 30,000                   
City Hall Server Room A/C Replacement/Upgrade 25,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 25,000                   
City-Wide Camera Update/Addition (12) 18,600             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 18,600                   
Dispatch UPS 18,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 18,000                   
Plan Review Tables (2) 17,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 17,000                   
Dispatch Radio Computers (4) 25,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 25,000                   
BCC Speaker Replacement 75,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 75,000                   -                             
BCC Security System Replacement 78,000             BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 78,000                   -                             
STREETS & BRIDGES
Street Repair/Reconstruction/Prev. Maintenance 4,500,000        STREETS & BRIDGES 587,000                1,238,000             950,000                1,000,000             725,000                
Street Repair/Reconstruction/Prev. Maintenance Discretionary 500,000           STREETS & BRIDGES 500,000                
Update Pavement Condition Model/Street Sign Assessment 100,000           STREETS & BRIDGES 100,000                -                             
PARKS & RECREATION
Downtown Landscape Improvements 800,000           PARKS & RECREATION 800,000                
Sunset Pathfinder Extention & Pedestrian Bridge 400,000           PARKS & RECREATION 700,000                
Lifecycle Replacement of Playground Wood Mulch ($50k/yr) 250,000           PARKS & RECREATION 50,000                   50,000                   50,000                   50,000                   50,000                   
Pathfinder Parkway - Maintenance/Repair 257,000           PARKS & RECREATION 257,000                

 Sooner Pool Liner Epoxy Repair 200,000           PARKS & RECREATION 200,000                
Artunoff Softball/MJ Lee Parking Lot 160,000           PARKS & RECREATION 160,000                
Frontier Pool Liner Epoxy Repair 100,000           PARKS & RECREATION 100,000                
Lifecycle Replacement of Park Amenities ($15k/yr) 75,000             PARKS & RECREATION 15,000                   15,000                   15,000                   15,000                   15,000                   
Security Lighting in Parks 75,000             PARKS & RECREATION 75,000                   
Replacement of Shade Structures - Sooner and Frontier Pools 60,000             PARKS & RECREATION 30,000                   30,000                   
Douglas Park Parking Lot 50,000             PARKS & RECREATION 50,000                   
JoAllyn Lowe Turf Reestablishment 50,000             PARKS & RECREATION 50,000                   
Replace Roof on North End of Pro Shop 30,000             PARKS & RECREATION 50,000                   Moved to YR 4 original budget $30k
Irrigation Control System 21,000             PARKS & RECREATION 21,000                   
Oak Park Basketball Court 100,000           PARKS & RECREATION 100,000                
DRAINAGE
Choctaw Drainage 250,000           DRAINAGE 250,000                
Drainage Materials ($25k/yr) 125,000           DRAINAGE 25,000                   25,000                   25,000                   25,000                   25,000                   

2020 CIP ELECTION - FINAL PROJECT LIST - IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE - UPDATED 5-1-24 - FY24-25



 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
  



 

 



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 



 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 

  



 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 

  



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT F 

  



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



Agenda Item  
May 2, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering 

 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Presentation of Street & Traffic Committee recommended Preventative Maintenance Street 
Projects for approved funding in FY’s 21-22, 22-23, and 23-24, with possible action for Council 
recommendation. 
 
Attachments: 

Street & Traffic Committee Project Selection List 
Street & Traffic Committee Recommended Project List 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
In August of 2020, the citizens of Bartlesville voted to extend a one-half cent sales tax to 
finance capital improvements for a five year period.  The authorizing ordinance stated that this 
sales tax is to be used for the making of capital improvements, to include, but not limited to 
“roads and streets, drainage improvements, water improvements, sewer improvements, 
machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, rights-of-way, all real property, all 
construction or reconstruction of buildings, appurtenances and improvements to real property 
and other costs and expenses related thereto.”  A specific list of improvements which is to be 
financed from the proceeds of this tax, included allocation of $1,000,000 each year for 
preventative maintenance (PM) street projects, totaling $5,000,000.  While the actual schedule 
of funding each year varies for the street projects, the overall total planned over 5 years equates 
to the approved $5,000,000.  One of the other projects included with this extension was to hire 
a consultant to update the pavement condition model used to assist with selecting street projects 
for funding.  Historically, the PM street projects are selected by the Street & Traffic Committee 
based upon lists of recommended projects compiled by the Engineering Department. These 
projects are selected based upon multiple factors, with one of the primary factors being the 
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) that is determined using the pavement condition model.  At 
the time of the sales tax extension, the model was out of date, thus the inclusion of a project to 
update the model.  Rather than selecting PM street projects based off of out-of-date 
information, the funds were banked until the model was updated. 

The City Council approved a contract with Infrastructure Management Services (IMS) in 
September, 2021 to update the model.  The final version of the model was completed in May, 
2023.  At that point Engineering staff went to work to compile a list of PM street projects to 
present to the Street & Traffic Committee for not only the PM street projects funded in FY’s 
22, 23, and 24, but also for the street projects included in the 2023 General Obligation (GO) 
Bond election held in October, 2023.  The initial focus was on the GO Bond projects since they 
needed to be selected earlier in the year to facilitate the fall election.  The committee was able 
to review and approve a list of PM projects for City Council consideration at the August 10, 
2023 Street & Traffic Committee meeting.  Information had also been presented to the 
committee prior to the selection meeting as part of the planning process for the GO Bond 
projects.  The committee was presented with $3,455,000 in potential PM street projects with a 

11.



budget of $2,775,000 based upon the following funding that had been approved for the first 
three (3) years of the 5-year capital sales tax extension: 

     FY 21-22  $587,000 

     FY 22-23  $1,238,000 

     FY 23-24  $950,000 

     Total   $2,775,000 

The projects identified for PM street projects generally consist of pavement rehabilitation 
applications that extend the life of pavements that are in relatively good condition.  These 
applications include, but are not limited to the use of pavement rejuvenators and sealers, micro-
surfacing, thin asphalt overlays, and crack sealing on asphalt streets, along with crack sealing 
and minor panel replacement or patching on concrete streets.  As always, the committee took 
into consideration the traffic volume, street classification, and other factors and tried to spread 
the projects around the entire city. 

The list of projects presented to the Street & Traffic Committee is included with this staff 
report along with the final list of projects the committee selected for City Council 
consideration.  It should be noted that an additional $1,000,000 of PM street funding is being 
recommended for Council approval as part of the FY 24-25 capital budget.  Staff will be 
working with the Street & Traffic Committee in the coming months to identify projects for 
those funds and will come back to the City Council with a recommendation.  
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
Funds are already budgeted for the recommended projects.  These funds were approved by the 
City Council as part of the FY 21-22, FY 22-23, and FY 23-24 capital budgets and funds have 
been carried over each year until projects were selected.  There will be no impact to the budget 
other than what has previously been approved. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff requests Council consideration and approval of the Street & Traffic Committee 
recommended Preventative Maintenance Street Projects for Fiscal Years 21-22, 22-23, and 23-
24 at its regular meeting on May 6th. 
 



Map ID Project Description Cost Estimate

1 Bison Road - Tuxedo to Nowata (Microsurface/Reclamite) 200,000.00$               
2 Tuxedo Blvd - Madison to Bison (Microsurface/Reclamite) 150,000.00$               
3 Madison Blvd - Tuxedo to Price (Microsurface) 250,000.00$               
4 Price Road - Washington to Madison (Microsurface) 150,000.00$               
5 Hillcrest Drive - 20th to Silverlake (Reclamite) 180,000.00$               
6 Frank Phillips Blvd - Sunset to Hillside (Microsurface/Reclamite) 250,000.00$               
7 Frank Phillips Blvd - Avondale to Madison (Microsurface) 150,000.00$               
8 Silverlake Drive - Frank Phillips to Tuxedo (Microsurface) 75,000.00$                 
9 Jennings - 4th to 15th (Microsurface/Reclamite) 100,000.00$               

10 Johnstone - Hensley to 14th (Microsurface/Reclamite) 110,000.00$               
11 Keeler - 2nd to Adams (Reclamite) 50,000.00$                 
12 Dewey - Hensley to Adams (Reclamite) 60,000.00$                 
13 Osage - Hensley to 6th (Incl 6th) (Reclamite) 60,000.00$                 
14 6th Street - Jennings to Dewey (Reclamite) 30,000.00$                 
15 5th Street - Jennings to Cherokee (Reclamite) 50,000.00$                 
16 4th Street - Johnstone to Cherokee (Reclamite) 30,000.00$                 
17 2nd Street - Keeler to Cherokee (Reclamite) 40,000.00$                 
18 Green Counrty Rd - Washington to Rolling Meadows (Microsurface) 40,000.00$                 
19 Nowata Rd - Silverlake to Washington (Microsurface) 150,000.00$               
20 Adams Rd - Washington to Adams Blvd (Microsurface) 60,000.00$                 
21 Huntington/Williamsburg (Reclamite) 40,000.00$                 
22 Camelot - Montrose to Rice Creek (Microsurface) 60,000.00$                 
23 Jefferson Place - Lincoln to Boardwalk (Microsurface) 150,000.00$               
24 Virginia - Hensley to Butler Creek (Edge Mill/Thin OL) 300,000.00$               
25 Nova - Wayside to Price - (Reclamite) 40,000.00$                 
26 Kristin - Hill to Stonewall (Reclamite) 30,000.00$                 
27 Stonewall - Silverlake to Nova (Microsurface) 150,000.00$               
28 Concrete Crack Sealing/Minor Panel Replacement (City-wide) 500,000.00$               

TOTAL 3,455,000.00$           
AVAILABLE BUDGET 2,775,000.00$           
DIFFERENCE (680,000.00)$             

FY 23-24 PM STREETS FOR COMMITTEE REVIEW
8/10/2023



5

9

10

11

12

15

17

1

2

3

4

8

13

6

14

7

18

19

20

24

22

23

25

26

27

16

21

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand), NGCC, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

FY 23-24 PM STREETS
FOR COMMITTEE REVIEW

8/10/2023

°



Map ID Project Description Cost Estimate

1 Bison Road - Tuxedo to Nowata (Microsurface/Reclamite) 200,000.00$               
2 Tuxedo Blvd - Madison to Bison (Microsurface/Reclamite) 150,000.00$               
3 Madison Blvd - Tuxedo to Price (Microsurface) 250,000.00$               
4 Price Road - Washington to Madison (Microsurface) 150,000.00$               
5 Hillcrest Drive - 20th to Silverlake (Reclamite) 180,000.00$               
6 Frank Phillips Blvd - Sunset to Hillside (Microsurface/Reclamite) 250,000.00$               
7 Frank Phillips Blvd - Avondale to Madison (Microsurface) 150,000.00$               

10 Johnstone - Hensley to 14th (Microsurface/Reclamite) 110,000.00$               
12 Dewey - Hensley to Adams (Reclamite) 60,000.00$                 
13 Osage - Hensley to 6th (Incl 6th) (Reclamite) 60,000.00$                 
14 6th Street - Jennings to Dewey (Reclamite) 30,000.00$                 
15 5th Street - Jennings to Cherokee (Reclamite) 50,000.00$                 
16 4th Street - Johnstone to Cherokee (Reclamite) 30,000.00$                 
17 2nd Street - Keeler to Cherokee (Reclamite) 40,000.00$                 
19 Nowata Rd - Silverlake to Washington (Microsurface) 150,000.00$               
23 Jefferson Place - Lincoln to Boardwalk (Microsurface) 150,000.00$               
24 Virginia - Hensley to Butler Creek (Edge Mill/Thin OL) 300,000.00$               
28 Concrete Crack Sealing/Minor Panel Replacement (City-wide) 465,000.00$               

TOTAL 2,775,000.00$           
AVAILABLE BUDGET 2,775,000.00$           
DIFFERENCE -$                             

FY 23-24 PM STREETS COMMITTEE SELECTED
8/10/2023



5

10

12

15

17

1

2

3

4

13

6

14

7

19

24

23

25

26

27

16

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand), NGCC, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

FY 23-24 PM STREETS
COMMITTEE APPROVED

8/10/2023

°



Agenda Item ___ 
May 1, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Presentation of staff recommended issuance schedule for 2023 General Obligation Bond projects 
with possible action for Council recommendation. 
 
Attachments: 

2023 G.O. Bond staff recommended schedule of issuance 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
At the July 3, 2023 regular City Council meeting, the Bartlesville City Council authorized the 
calling and holding of a special election for voters to consider the issuance of $17,600,000 in 
General Obligation Bonds for capital improvements.  The ballot included four (4) propositions: 
 

Proposition No. 1 - $2,412,000 for Public Safety Buildings and Facilities 
Proposition No. 2 - $696,000 for Municipal Building and Facilities 
Proposition No. 3 - $12,278,000 for Street and Bridge Projects 
Proposition No. 4 - $2,214,000 for Parks and Recreation Facilities 

 
Voters approved all four (4) propositions at the October 10, 2023 election.  Bond council have 
projected that the $17,600,000 in G.O. Bond funds will be issued over four(4) years as follows: 
 

Series 2024 - $3,500,000 
Series 2025 - $3,250,000 
Series 2026 - $3,750,000 
Series 2027 - $7,100,000 
 

Staff have assembled a schedule of projects to fall within the anticipated funding availability for 
each bond issuance.  The schedule of projects is included with this staff report. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
There is no immediate budget impact with this presentation, however approval of this schedule 
of projects will establish the G.O. Bond project funding for the next four (4) years. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff requests Council consideration and approval of the 2023 G.O. Bond project issuance 
schedule for future allocation of funds through bond issuances. 

12.



 Description 
 Project 
Amount 

 Estimated 
COI 

 Amount 
Including COI  Category 2024 ISSUANCE 2025 ISSUANCE 2026 ISSUANCE 2027 ISSUANCE

 Estimated Cost of Issuance (2%)  $         70,000.00  $         65,000.00  $         75,000.00  $       142,000.00 
 PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES 
New Fire Station #2 2,365,000        47,300        2,412,300         Public Safety Buildings & Facilities FIRE 240,000               2,125,000           
MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES
Core Server Upgrade (5) 631,000           12,620        643,620            Municipal Buildings & Facilities Tech Services 631,000               
Core Server UPS Replacement (3) 53,000              1,060          54,060               Municipal Buildings & Facilities Tech Services 53,000                 
STREETS & BRIDGES
Adams Boulevard (Adams Road to Bison Road - Mill/Overlay 1,400,000        28,000        1,428,000         Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 1,400,000

 Lupa (Sunset to Seminole, Incl Margarite, Adeline, Bucy, Rogers, Kaw, 
Seminole, Theodore, Cudahy, Morton and Sunset) - Mill/Overlay 

1,180,000        23,600        1,203,600         Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 1,180,000

 Rockdale (Woodland to Brookside Pkwy, Incl. Ridgewood and Dogwood Ct.) - 
Concrete Panel 

960,000           19,200        979,200            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 960,000

 Cherokee Avenue (Hensley to 14th Street) - Mill/Overlay 825,000           16,500        841,500            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 825,000
Morton (8th to Hensley, Incl. 4th, 5th, Adeline and Sunset) - Mill/Overlay 750,000            15,000        765,000             Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 750,000

 Harvey (Jefferson Pl to Barnett Ave, Incl. Henrietta, Gary, Barnett, Velma and 
Dana) - Mill/Overlay 

725,000           14,500        739,500            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 725,000

 Sheridan Rd (Mission to Nowata Rd, Incl. Smysor, Vista Dr, Mission Rd, Redbud 
Ln, Cherokee Hills Dr, Cherokee Hills Pl, and Cherokee Hills Cr) - Mill/Overlay 

720,000           14,400        734,400            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 720,000

Lahoma (Spring to Palmetto) - Concrete Panel 700,000           14,000        714,000            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 700,000               
Michigan (Queenstown to Elmhurst) - Asphalt Reconstruction 550,000           11,000        561,000            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 550,000               
Southview (18th to 23rd, Incl. 18th and 23rd) - Mill/Overlay 530,000           10,600        540,600            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 530,000

 Swan Drive (Nowata Rd to Rolling Meadows, Incl. Harned from Nowata to 
Bridle) - Mill/Overlay 

500,000           10,000        510,000            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 500,000

 Avondale (Tuxedo to Ohio, Incl. Michigan and Indiana) - Mill/Overlay 500,000           10,000        510,000            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 500,000               
 Parkhill Streets (Incl. Steeper Dr, Park Hill Pl, Park Hill Ln, Park Hill Lp, Chickering 
Ct, and Park Hill Ct) - Mill/Overlay 

495,000            9,900          504,900             Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 495,000

 Jefferson Rd (Lincoln to Nowata, Incl. McKinley Rd, Lincoln Rd, Wilson Rd, 
Lincoln Pl, and Church Ct) - Mill/Overlay 

445,000            8,900          453,900             Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 445,000

 Silver Lake Road (Rice Creek to Price Road) - Mill/Overlay 450,000            9,000          459,000             Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 450,000
 Spruce (Tuxedo to Melody Ln, Incl. Fleetwood, Carole Ct, Sunview Pl, Barbara 
Ave, and Kentucky St) - Mill/Overlay 

410,000           8,200          418,200            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 410,000

 Greystone (Adams Blvd to Rolling Meadows) - Concrete Panel 300,000           6,000          306,000            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 300,000
 Rice Creek Rd (Silver Lake Rd to 1/2 Mile East) - Mill/Overlay 250,000           5,000          255,000            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 250,000
 Valley & Denver (Shawnee to Hillcrest) - Mill/Overlay 220,000           4,400          224,400            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 220,000               
 Georgetown (Silver Lake Rd to Cambridge) - Mill/Overlay 125,000           2,500          127,500            Streets & Bridges ENGINEERING 125,000
PARKS & RECREATION
Adams Golf Course Greens Rebuild - Phase 2 1,200,000        24,000        1,224,000         Parks & Recreation PARKS 1,200,000           
Pathfinder Repaving 250,000            5,000          255,000             Parks & Recreation PARKS 250,000

 Security Lighting in Parks 150,000            3,000          153,000             Parks & Recreation 100,000 50,000
Hudson Lake Restrooms 130,000            2,600          132,600             Parks & Recreation 130,000
Jo Allyn Lowe Drainage Improvements 120,000            2,400          122,400             Parks & Recreation 120,000               
Panther Park Equipment Replacement 100,000            2,000          102,000             Parks & Recreation 100,000               
Douglass Park Playground Shade Structure 70,000              1,400          71,400               Parks & Recreation PARKS 70,000                 
Wayfinding Signage Phase 2 100,000            2,000          102,000             Parks & Recreation 100,000               
Jo Allyn Lowe Trail Lights 50,000              1,000          51,000               Parks & Recreation 50,000

TOTAL 3,504,000           3,240,000           3,750,000 7,112,000
TOTAL 17,254,000      345,080     17,599,080       AVAILABLE 3,500,000           3,250,000           3,750,000 7,100,000

DIFFERENCE (4,000)                  10,000                 -                            (12,000)                

PARKS

PARKS
PARKS

2023 G.O. BOND ELECTION - APPROVED PROJECT LIST - IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE - UPDATED 5-1-2023

 DEPARTMENT 

PARKS
PARKS
PARKS



BDA Operating Budget FY 2024-25
Approved by the BDA Trustees April 24, 2024

A B C D E
2023-24 To-date 2023-24 2024-25

Revenue Budget 9                    Projection BUDGET % YoY
1 City of Bartlesville 803,750       602,812       803,749             839,749         1.04          
2 Cash carryover from prior year 279,327       279,327       279,327             234,988         0.84          
3 Interest -                15,192          15,192               -                  
4 Other Income -                -                -                      
5 1,083,077    897,340       1,098,268          1,074,737      0.99          

Personnel
6 Salaries 482,380       361,786       482,381             501,677         1.04          
7 Payroll Taxes 32,212          26,574          34,275               37,016            1.15          
8 Employee Benefits 98,616          77,085          102,780             108,656         1.10          
9 Professional Dev. 5,000            1,725            1,725                  5,000              1.00          

10 618,208       467,170       621,162             652,349         1.06          

Administration & Program Support
11 Accounting & Auditing 25,000          32,447          45,000               35,000            1.40          
12 Administrative Fees & Leases 24,119          18,089          24,119               25,084            1.04          
13 Automobile 4,500            3,888            4,000                  25,000            5.56          
14 Equipment & Furniture 2,000            1,178            2,500                  2,500              1.25          
15 Communications 6,000            4,286            6,000                  6,000              1.00          
16 Dues, Fees & Subscriptions 18,000          17,787          18,000               19,000            1.06          
17 Insurance 7,500            6,146            8,500                  9,000              1.20          
18 Repair & Maintenance 3,000            1,699            3,000                  3,000              1.00          
19 Legal Fees 25,000          19,590          27,000               27,000            1.08          
20 Office Supplies 2,500            1,895            2,500                  2,500              1.00          
21 Property/Project Management 15,000          6,800            6,800                  5,000              0.33          
22 Office & Facility Rent 22,500          16,875          22,500               22,500            1.00          
23 Special Project Reserve 100,000       -                -                      75,000            0.75          
24 SLV Conservation 10,000          -                -                      10,000            1.00          
25 265,119       130,680       169,919             266,584         1.01          

Program
26 Advertising & Marketing 75,000          42,404          60,000               60,000            0.80          
27 Contingency 100,000       -                -                      75,000            0.75          
28 Promotional Items & Gifts 250               109               200                     305                 1.22          
29 Prospect Visits 2,000            -                -                      2,000              1.00          
30 Research 10,000          6,000            5,000                  6,000              0.60          
31 Travel 10,000          5,183            7,000                  10,000            1.00          
32 Trade Shows & Events 2,500            -                -                      2,500              1.00          
33 199,750       53,696          72,200               155,805         0.78          

-                      
-                      

34 TOTAL REVENUE 1,083,077    897,340       1,098,268          1,074,737      0.99          
35 TOTAL EXPENSE 1,083,077    651,546       863,280             1,074,737      0.99          
36 Revenue over Expense -                245,794       234,988             (0)                     

38 Special Project Reserve (100,000)            
39 SLV Conservation (10,000)              
40 Contingency (100,000)            
41 PROJECTED Operating Surplus 24,988               

Agenda Item 13.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 6th day of May, 2024, but to 

become effective July 1, 2024, by and between the CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, 

OKLAHOMA, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as "CITY', and 

BARTLESVILLE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, an Oklahoma Trust, hereinafter 

referred to as "BDA",  

 

WITNESSETH:  

 

WHEREAS BDA has been formed for the purpose of furthering economic 

development in the Bartlesville area and City wished to contract with BDA for such 

purposes and BDA also desires to enter into such an agreement with City.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged by both parties hereto, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:  

 

1. PURPOSE. BDA agrees to use its best efforts to further the economic 

development of the City of Bartlesville and its surrounding area. It will use its best 

efforts to promote Bartlesville as a community of excellence, known for a superior 

lifestyle, a diverse economic base, and a highly skilled workforce which foster the 

growth of tourism and business, providing quality employment opportunity for all 

citizens.  

 

Agenda Item 14. 



 2 

 

BDA has presented a strategic plan and a budget to fund its operational 

expenses for the period from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025, copies of 

which are attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

 

2. FUNDING. City agrees to pay to BDA the sum of $839,749 which sum shall be 

paid by City to BDA 1/12 of said amount by no later than the 15th day of each 

month starting in July 2024, and appropriates to BDA the unrestricted funds 

remaining with BDA on June 30, 2024 (estimated to be approximately $234,988) 

to fund the attached budget starting on July 1, 2024. 

  

 

All funds appropriated to BDA by City shall be used for a proper public 

purpose. In the event BDA shall desire to expend funds for other purposes, it 

shall be entitled to do so but shall be obligated to make expenditures from private 

funds raised and accounted for separately from public funds. On or prior to June 

30th of each year, BDA agrees to submit to City its annual action program, goals, 

and proposed budget which will help form the basis for the amount to be 

appropriated by City. It being clearly understood that City is under no legal 

obligation to appropriate funds for another year.  

 



 3 

3. TERM. This agreement shall expire on June 30, 2025, but it is intended that 

the relationship between the parties be a long-term relationship with agreements 

similar to this agreement, being signed by the parties on an annual basis.  

 

 

4. REPORTING. BDA will report to the City Council when so requested by City 

regarding its financial standing and its economic development plans and all else 

it may deem appropriate, including any specific subject requested by City. All 

such reports shall be open records in accordance with the open records laws of 

the State of Oklahoma. 

 

5. MEETINGS. The BDA will comply with the provisions of the Oklahoma Open 

Meetings Act.  

 

6. AMENDING ARTICLES. Article VII of the First Amendment to the Trust 

Indenture provides a method for selecting the members of the Board of Trustees 

and other provisions relating to their terms. BDA agrees that this portion of its 

Trust Indenture not be further amended without the prior approval of the 

Bartlesville City Council.  

 



 4 

7. CODE OF ETHICS. The parties agree that BDA has presented to the City 

Council a Code of Ethics policy which policy has been reviewed and approved by 

the City Council and said policy shall remain in effect during this contract period.  

 

 

8. BIDDING. BDA is encouraged to institute a policy of seeking competitive bids 

relating to the expenditure of its funds whenever possible. It is recognized that 

bidding is not always possible or practical but to the extent that BDA finds it 

advantageous, it is encouraged to seek competitive bids. In addition, BDA will 

comply with the Public Competitive Bidding Act of 1974.  

 

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. BDA is an independent contractor to the City 

in connection with this agreement. The officers and employees of BDA involved 

in the program of this contract shall not be considered for any purposes to be the 

officers of City.  

 

10. AUDIT. The parties agree that the City shall annually cause an audit by an 

independent auditor to be made of the records of BDA to the extent that they 

involve directly or indirectly the expenditure of funds appropriated to BDA by City 

pursuant to this agreement. The cost of such an audit shall be borne by BDA.  

 



 5 

11. RIGHT TO SUBCONTRACT. It is understood and agreed that BDA may itself 

perform its obligations and duties relating to economic development or that it may 

subcontract certain portions of its duties and responsibilities to other parties. 

However, in the event that certain duties are subcontracted, BDA will remain 

responsible to City for the results.  

 

12.  PROHIBITION ON EMPLOYMENT.  It is agreed that the Chief Executive 

Officer of the BDA will be only employed by and responsible to the BDA.  

Specifically, the Chief Executive Officer of the BDA will not also be employed by 

the Bartlesville Regional Chamber of Commerce or any related or similar entity. 

 

13.  EXISTING INCENTIVE CONTRACTS. In addition to its other duties, BDA 

shall be responsible for the monitoring of existing and future incentive 

agreements between City and other entities and shall report to City relative to 

compliance with existing contracts.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 6 

THIS AGREEMENT shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors and 

assigns.  

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 

 

     BY________________________________________ 
Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
     BARTLESVILLE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
      
     By_________________________________________ 
        President & CEO 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
__________________________  
Secretary  
 



 
Mission 

The Mission of Visit Bartlesville is to enhance the local economy, image, and quality of life by marketing 
and promoting the Bartlesville area as a destination for conventions, meetings, special events, leisure 
travel, and film. 

Strategic Vision 

Bartlesville is a unique city that combines the friendliness and accessibility of a small town with a rich 
cultural heritage typically found in much larger municipalities. Bartlesville’s history and architectural 
beauty make it a prime location for the cultural heritage visitor. In addition, the community’s events, 
museums, sports tournaments, and family friendly activities position us to target a variety of leisure 
travelers.  Visit Bartlesville is committed to providing the maximum return on investment to the City of 
Bartlesville and its industry partners through a highly effective program of marketing, sales, and 
customer service, facilitating economic growth by advocating destination development.  

Focus and Measurable Goals for FY2025 
1. Finance - Increase fiscal impact (hotel tax generated + sales tax generated) by Visit Bartlesville 
2. Marketing - Increase group tour/meeting/conference bookings by 10% 
3. Increase website hits by 25% through targeted digital marketing efforts 
4. Increased attendance at area attractions with a target range of 5-15% 
5. Market towards a 5% increase in Lodging Tax 

 
Marketing Objectives 

1. Enhance Bartlesville as a travel destination with continued regional marketing while also 
targeting the cultural heritage traveler, architecture enthusiasts, history  

2. Continue to implement brand awareness in the Leisure/Sports market 
3. Continued growth and support to convention/small meeting market 
4. Increase awareness of Bartlesville as a film friendly destination 

 
Our top objectives in the FY2025 marketing plan are to focus on our regional market, increase social 
media credibility, empower locals to share the many assets of the Bartlesville area and educate the 
public on the services of Visit Bartlesville. We will continue to focus on the regional attraction of the 
area by highlighting our proximity to locations such as Route 66, Tulsa, and Osage County.  Our slide 
presentation will include information on visitor attendance, website analytics and social media data. In 
addition, Visit Bartlesville utilizes a detailed tracking tool measuring the visitor spending and economic 
impact of all group tours, sporting events, special events, small market meetings, and filming projects. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 15.



Bartlesville CVB

Revenue & Expenses
FY 2024-2025 
Proposed Budget

Revenue
City Contract 445,000                   
CO-OP Advertising 6,700                       
VIC Income 200                          
Meetings 500                          
Cash Carryover 10,764                     
Total Revenue 463,164                   

Expenses
Personnel

7010 Salaries 159,000                   
7020 Payroll Taxes 12,000                     
7030 Employee Benefits 27,500                     
7050 Outside Services 1,000                       

Total Personnel 199,500                   

Administrative/Program Support
7100 Accounting and Auditing 8,500                       
7105 Administrative Fees & Leases 6,979                       
7130 Equipment and Furniture 1,550                       
7140 Communications 2,300                       
7150 Contingency 2,000                       
7180 Dues, Fees and Subscriptions 12,000                     
7185 Insurance 2,000                       
7190 Repair and Maintenance 1,100                       
7200 Meetings/Events 1,910                       
7210 Office Supplies 200                          
7270 Office and Facility Rent 17,400                     

Total Admin/Program Support 55,939                     

Marketing Program
7110 Advertising and Marketing 97,000                     
7220 Printing & Distribution 38,000                     
7230 Grant Funding 32,000                     
7240 Promotional Items 13,000                     
7280 Trade Shows/ Travel 13,000                     
7300 Website 1,000                       

Total Marketing Program 194,000                   
TTL Expense 449,439                   

Agenda Item 15. 



DESTINATION MARKETING AGREEMENT  
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _6th __ day of May, 2024, but to 

become effective July 1, 2024, by and between the CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, 

OKLAHOMA, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as "CITY', and VISITORS, 

INC., an Oklahoma Trust, hereinafter referred to as "Visit Bartlesville",  

 

WITNESSETH:  

 

WHEREAS VISIT BARTLESVILLE has been formed for the purpose of furthering 

destination marketing and tourism development in the Bartlesville area and City wished 

to contract with VISIT BARTLESVILLE for such purposes and VISIT BARTLESVILLE 

also desires to enter into such an agreement with City.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged by both parties hereto, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:  

 

1. PURPOSE. VISIT BARTLESVILLE agrees to use its best efforts to further the 

destination marketing, visitation, and tourism economic development of the City 

of Bartlesville and its surrounding area. It will use its best efforts to promote 

Bartlesville as a community of excellence, known for a superior lifestyle, a 

diverse economic base, and a highly skilled workforce which foster the growth of 

tourism and business, providing quality employment opportunity for all citizens.  

 

 

Agenda Item 16.



 2 

VISIT BARTLESVILLE has presented a strategic plan and a budget to 

fund its operational expenses for the period from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 

2025, copies of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

 

2. FUNDING. City agrees to pay to VISIT BARTLESVILLE the sum of $445,000 

which sum shall be paid by City to VISIT BARTLESVILLE 1/12 of said amount by 

no later than the 15th day of each month starting in July 2024, and appropriates 

to VISIT BARTLESVILLE the unrestricted funds remaining with VISIT 

BARTLESVILLE on June 30, 2024 to fund the attached budget starting on July 1, 

2024. 

 

 VISIT BARTLESVILLE appropriation shall come from the economic 

development fund and the amount requested shall be based on an average of 

lodging tax and lodging tax equivalent (i.e. short term vacation rentals or other 

lodging agreement) collected for the previous three years.  

 

All funds appropriated to VISIT BARTLESVILLE by City shall be used for a 

proper public purpose. In the event VISIT BARTLESVILLE shall desire to expend 

funds for other purposes, it shall be entitled to do so but shall be obligated to 

make expenditures from private funds raised and accounted for separately from 

public funds. On or prior to June 30th of each year, VISIT BARTLESVILLE agrees 

to submit to City its annual action program, goals, and proposed budget which 

will help form the basis for the amount to be appropriated by City. It being clearly 



 3 

understood that City is under no legal obligation to appropriate funds for another 

year.  

 

3. TERM. This agreement shall expire on June 30, 2025, but it is intended that 

the relationship between the parties be a long-term relationship with agreements 

similar to this agreement, being signed by the parties on an annual basis.  

 

 

4. REPORTING. VISIT BARTLESVILLE will report to the City Council when so 

requested by City regarding its financial standing and its tourism development 

plans and all else it may deem appropriate, including any specific subject 

requested by City. All such reports shall be open records in accordance with the 

open records laws of the State of Oklahoma. 

 

5. MEETINGS. The VISIT BARTLESVILLE will comply with the provisions of the 

Oklahoma Open Meetings Act.  

 

6. AMENDING ARTICLES. Article VII of the First Amendment to the Trust 

Indenture provides a method for selecting the members of the Board of Trustees 

and other provisions relating to their terms. VISIT BARTLESVILLE agrees that 

this portion of its Trust Indenture not be further amended without the prior 

approval of the Bartlesville City Council.  

 



 4 

7. CODE OF ETHICS. The parties agree that VISIT BARTLESVILLE has 

presented to the City Council a Code of Ethics policy which policy has been 

reviewed and approved by the City Council and said policy shall remain in effect 

during this contract period.  

 

 

8. BIDDING. VISIT BARTLESVILLE is encouraged to institute a policy of seeking 

competitive bids relating to the expenditure of its funds whenever possible. It is 

recognized that bidding is not always possible or practical but to the extent that 

VISIT BARTLESVILLE finds it advantageous, it is encouraged to seek 

competitive bids. In addition, VISIT BARTLESVILLE will comply with the Public 

Competitive Bidding Act of 1974.  

 

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. VISIT BARTLESVILLE is an independent 

contractor to the City in connection with this agreement. The officers and 

employees of VISIT BARTLESVILLE involved in the program of this contract 

shall not be considered for any purposes to be the officers of City.  

 

10. AUDIT. The parties agree that the City shall annually cause an audit by an 

independent auditor to be made of the records of VISIT BARTLESVILLE to the 

extent that they involve directly or indirectly the expenditure of funds appropriated 

to VISIT BARTLESVILLE by City pursuant to this agreement. The cost of such an 

audit shall be borne by VISIT BARTLESVILLE.  



 5 

 

11. RIGHT TO SUBCONTRACT. It is understood and agreed that VISIT 

BARTLESVILLE may itself perform its obligations and duties relating to tourism 

development or that it may subcontract certain portions of its duties and 

responsibilities to other parties. However, in the event that certain duties are 

subcontracted, VISIT BARTLESVILLE will remain responsible to City for the 

results.  

 

12.  PROHIBITION ON EMPLOYMENT.  It is agreed that the Chief Executive 

Officer of VISIT BARTLESVILLE will be only employed by and responsible to 

VISIT BARTLESVILLE.  Specifically, the Chief Executive Officer of VISIT 

BARTLESVILLE will not also be employed by the Bartlesville Regional Chamber 

of Commerce or any related or similar entity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors and 

assigns.  



 6 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 

 

     BY________________________________________ 
Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
     Visitors, Inc. dba Visit Bartlesville 
 
 
 
      
     By_________________________________________ 
        President & CEO 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
__________________________  
Secretary  
 



17.



















Agenda Item ___ 
May 6, 2024 

Prepared by Mike Bailey, City Manager 
Administration 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss and take possible action to adopt an ordinance permitting the use of golf carts on City 
streets.   
 
Attachments: 

Ordinance 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Councilmember Roszel has expressed an interest in exploring an ordinance that permit the safe 
use of golf carts on city streets. He and I have discussed this a few times in the past, and I was 
able to obtain a few model ordinances used by other cities in Oklahoma. The attached ordinance 
is the result of the review of these ordinances, input from City staff, and a final review by our 
City Attorney. 
 
The major impacts of this ordinance are: 
 

• Permit golf carts to be used on city streets 
• Require a valid driver’s license for any operators 
• Only permitted on streets with speed limits not in excess of 35mph 
• Passengers must sit in the designated seating area of the cart only 
• Cart must maintain a speed less than or at 20mph 
• State law relating to headlamps and tail lamps must be followed if a cart is used at night 
• Must be posted as a slow moving vehicle 
• Carts must follow all applicable rules of the road 
• Carts may only enter a State highway for the perpendicular crossing of said highway 

 
City staff supports the implementation of this ordinance.  Please schedule this for our May 6 
Council meeting. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 None 
 
IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Approved the attached ordinance. 

18.



ORDINANCE NO.  ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 19 – TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE ADDING PROVISIONS FOR THE SAFE 
OPERATION OF GOLF CARTS UPON CITY STREETS AND PROVIDING FOR 
RENUMBERING SUBSEQENT SECTIONS. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to add a new Article to Chapter 19 of the Bartlesville Municipal 
Code to allow and regulate the safe use of golf carts upon city streets. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA, that: 
 
A new Article XVII titled “Golf Carts” shall be created in Chapter 19 of the Bartlesville municipal 
code that shall read as follows: 
 

1. Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning:  

(1) Golf cart means a motor vehicle that:  
i. Has no less than three wheels;  

ii. Has a maximum speed of between 15-20 miles per hour;  
iii. Is designed to carry not more than four persons including the driver; and  
iv. Is manufactured primarily for operation on golf courses.  

(2) Insurance means motor vehicle insurance which complies with the requirement set 
forth in O.S. title 36.  

(3) Slow moving vehicle emblem means a sign which complies with the requirements set 
forth in 47 O.S. § 12-427.  

2. A golf cart may be operated within the city limits, as expressly provided in this section.  
(1) Any person operating a golf cart upon a city street must have a valid driver’s license 

acceptable to the State of Oklahoma.  
(2) The individual operating the golf cart shall maintain financial responsibility for 

operation of such golf cart in accordance with the requirements set forth in O.S. title 
36.  

(3) Golf carts shall only be operated on city streets with a speed limit of no greater than 
35 miles per hour.  

(4) Only the number of people the golf cart is designed to seat may ride on the golf cart. 
Passengers must be seated at all times and shall not ride in the area designated for 
golf bags.  



(5) No golf cart may be operated at a speed greater than reasonable and prudent for 
existing conditions, or at a speed greater than 20 miles per hour.  

(6) No golf cart may be operated in a careless or reckless manner.  
(7) Golf carts must be operated to the extreme right of the roadway and must yield to all 

vehicular and pedestrian traffic.  
(8) Operation shall be during daylight hours only, except for those that are equipped with 

Department of Transportation (DOT) approved head lamps and tail lamps that are 
properly attached and adjusted as required by title 47 Oklahoma Statutes 12-203 
Head Lamps, 47 Oklahoma Statutes 12-204 Tail Lamps, and 47 Oklahoma Statutes 
12-206 Stop Lamps. 

(9) A slow-moving vehicle sign as defined in subsection (a) of this section must be 
posted upon said golf cart in accordance with state statutes.  

(10) Golf carts shall not be operated on or across any public or private property without 
the express permission of the property owner.  

(11) Golf carts may not be used for the commercial carrying of passengers or the hauling 
of freight.  

(12) Motorized golf cart operators must obey all traffic laws which can reasonably be 
applied to golf carts. However, laws dealing with motor vehicle licensing shall not 
apply.  

(13) Violation of this section may be enforced by the city police by any legal method 
prescribed by law, including, but not limited to, the following: Any person or entity 
violating any of the provisions of this section may be prosecuted in the same manner 
as misdemeanors are prosecuted and shall, upon conviction, be punished for each 
offense by a fine not to exceed $500.00.  

(14) No golf cart shall be operated on any state highway except for the perpendicular 
crossing of a state highway located within the municipal boundaries of the city.  
 

Subsequent articles of Chapter 19 of the Bartlesville municipal code shall be renumbered as follows: 

 ARTICLE XVIII. - ONE-WAY STREETS AND ALLEYS 

ARTICLE XIX. - BICYCLES 

ARTICLE XX. - EMERGENCY VEHICLES 

ARTICLE XXI. - HAZARDOUS MATERIALS TRUCK ROUTES 

ARTICLE XXII. - RAILROAD TRAINS AND CROSSINGS 

ARTICLE XXIII. - SEATBELTS 

 

 

 



APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE THIS 6TH DAY OF MAY 2024. 

 
 
    _________________________________________ 
    Dale Copeland, Mayor 
    City of Bartlesville 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
City Clerk 
City of Bartlesville 



Ward 4 Applications will be provided to the City Council at the 

 City Council Meeting. 

Agenda Item 19.


	City Council Agenda May 6, 2024
	Agenda Item 4.a. Purple Heart City Proclamation
	Dale W. Copeland, Mayor

	Agenda Item 4.b. Police Week Proclamation 2024
	Agenda Item 6.a.i. City Council Minutes April 1, 2024
	Agenda Item 6.a.ii. City Council Minutes April 15. 2024
	Agenda Item 6.a.iii. City Council WORKSHOP Minutes April 15. 2024
	Agenda Item 6.b.i. Street and Traffic Committee Appointments
	Agenda Item 6.b.ii. Cole Crockett to SSIOC
	Agenda Item 6.b.iii. Jan Watt to CCTA
	Agenda Item 6.b.iv. Ambulance Commission reappointment for Richard Keim
	Agenda Item 6.b.v. Dr. Gopal to KBB
	Agenda Item 6.c.i. Council Contract Employee's Amendment - 7-1-24
	Resolution Amending Contracts for Council Employees.pdf
	A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE AMENDING THE AGREEMENTS FOR THE CITY ATTORNEY, MUNICIPAL JUDGE, AND CITY MANAGER.
	BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this amendment shall be retroactive to the initial effective date of all contracts subject to this provision.
	PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, held the 6th day of May 2024.


	Agenda Item 6.c.ii. InterLocal Agreement City and Bureau of Indian Afffairs
	Agenda Item 6.d.i. CM Contract - 7-1-24
	Agenda Item 6.d.ii. Contract with Stephen Smith for Library
	Agenda Item 6.d.iii. T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Brittany Day
	Agenda Item 6.d.iv. Contract Agreement with Debbie Neece and BAHM
	Agenda Item 6.d.v. Staff report Amndmnt_1 lease pilot module_WWTP Expansion
	Staff report for lease amendment_1 pilot module_WWTP Expansion
	Staff report Amndmnt_1 lease pilot module_WWTP Expansion
	Intuitech Lease Agreement - Executed 10-2-23
	Lease Equipment Agreement Amendment_1


	Agenda Item 6.d.vi. Agreement between the City and Concern
	Agenda Item 6.d.vii. City and RxBenefits
	Agenda Item 6.e.i. OMAG Trustee Vote Memo-Consent Docket
	Agenda Item 6.f.i. March 2024 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	March 2024 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	P9 March 2024 Financials
	P9 March 2024 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 6.g.i. Bartlesville NEXT Report - Apr 2024
	Apr 24

	Agenda Item 7. Council Cover Letter 4936 Amhurst Dr Easement Closing
	Agenda Item 8. Arcadian Housing Easement Closing
	Agenda Item 9. Budget Staff Report
	Agenda Item 9. Budget Adoption 2025 PP
	Agenda Item 9. Original Budget Adoption Resolution 24-25A
	Agenda Item 9. Original Budget Adoption Resolution 24-25B
	Agenda Item 10. Staff Report_CIP Budget_Council Adoption_5.6.2024
	Agenda Item 11. Staff Report_Preventative Maintenance Streets_Council Approval_5.6.2024
	Agenda Item 12. Staff report_Recommended 2023 GO Bond Schedule of Projects_5.1.2023
	Agenda Item 13. Copy of BDA Budget 2024-25
	Sheet2

	Agenda Item 14. City-BDA Agreement 2025
	Agenda Item 15. Visit Bartlesville FY2025 Marketing Plan Final
	Agenda Item 15. 2024-2025 CVB Proposed Budget
	Sheet 1

	Agenda Item 16. City-Visit Bartlesville Agreement FY25
	Agenda Item 17. Strategic Direction of Golf Course and RFP
	Agenda Item 18. Golf Cart Ordinance
	ADPB117.tmp
	APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 6TH DAY OF MAY 2024.


	Agenda Item 19. Ward 4 Applications will be provided to the City Council at the



